

Enterprise IP Solutions OfficeServ

OfficeServ Call User Manual

Every effort has been made to eliminate errors and ambiguities in the information contained in this guide. Any questions concerning information presented here should be directed to SAMSUNG TELECOMMUNICATIONS AMERICA, 1301 E. Lookout Dr. Richardson, TX. 75082 telephone (972) 761-7300. SAMSUNG TELECOMMUNICATIONS AMERICA disclaims all liabilities for damages arising from the erroneous interpretation or use of information presented in this guide.

Samsung Telecommunications

Publication Information

SAMSUNG TELECOMMUNICATIONS AMERICA reserves the right without prior notice to revise information in this publication for any reason. SAMSUNG TELECOMMUNICATIONS AMERICA also reserves the right without prior notice to make changes in design or components of equipment as engineering and manufacturing may warrant.

Copyright 2005

Samsung Telecommunications America

All rights reserved. No part of this manual may be reproduced in any form or by any means—graphic, electronic or mechanical, including recording, taping, photocopying or information retrieval systems—without express written permission of the publisher of this material.

PRINTED IN USA

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER 1. Introduction	1
Conventions	1
Overview	2
Introduction to the OfficeServ Operator	2
CHAPTER 2. Installation	4
System Requirements	4
Computer System	4
System Users and Password Requirements	4
How to Install	4
CHAPTER 3. Overview of OfficeServ Call	11
Status Bar	12
Selection View	13
Detailed List Views	14
Directory Service	14
Scheduler Service	
Call Log Service	14
Call Control View	14
Configuration	
How Do You Open BLF View?	15
How Do You Open EasySet?	15
How Do You Change DDE Options?	
a. DDE Settings	
b. Reinitialize DDE/Uninitialize DDE	
How Do You Set Up Call Notification?	
a. How Do You Configure General Options?	
b. How Do You Configure Database Options?	
How Do You Set Database Synchronization Options	
How Do You Change Phone Lines Options? How Do You Set Environments?	

a. Station Password	26
b. Page Zone Names	26
c. Time Out Parameters	27
d. EasySet URL	28
e. System Tray	28
CHAPTER 4. Station Setup	29
How Do You Set a Station Lock/Unlock?	29
a. How Do You Set a Station Lock?	29
b. How Do You Unlock Your Station?	30
How Do You Set a Station Programmed Message?OfficeServ	30
How Do You Set Your Station to Do Not Disturb Mode?	31
a. How Do You Set/Reset DND on Your Station from Station Setup Menu?	31
b. How Do You Set/Reset DND on Your Station from Status Bar?	31
c. How Do You Set/Reset DND Using Hot Key?	31
How Do You Set Call Forwarding?	31
a. How Do You Set Call Forwarding from the Station Setup Menu?	31
b. How Do You Set Call Forwarding from Status Bar?	31
c. How Do You Reset Call Forwarding?	33
How Do You Redirect Calls to Follow You?	33
How Do You Check Your Station's Message List?	34
a. How Do You Check Your Station's Message List	
from the Station Setup Menu?	34
b. How Do You Check Your Station's Message List from the Status Bar?	35
How Do You Check Your Station's Call Back Status?	35
How Do You Set OfficeServ Call to Auto Answer?	36
How Do You Set Auto Trunk Callback?	36
CHAPTER 5. Call Control Services	37
Call List	37
Call Control Buttons	37
Call Control Menu	38
How Do You Make a Call?	39
a. How Do You Make a Call from the Call Control Menu?	39
b. How Do You Make a Call Using Hot Key?	39
c. How Do You Make a Call Using the Dial Button?	39
d. Other Ways of Making a Call	39
How Do You Answer a Call?	40

a.	How Do You Answer a Call from the Call Control Menu?	41
b.	How Do You Answer a Call Using Hot Key?	41
C.	How Do You Answer a Call Using the Answer Button?	41
d.	Other Ways You Can Answer a Call	41
How D	o You Release a Call?	41
a.	How Do You Release an Active Call from the Call Control Menu?	41
b.	How Do You Release an Active Call Using Hot Key?	41
C.	How Do You Release an Active Call Using the Release Button?	42
How D	Oo You Redial the Last Number Dialed?	42
a.	How Do You Redial the Last Number from the Call Control Menu?	42
b.	How Do You Redial the Last Number Using the Redial Button?	42
C.	Other Ways to Redial the Last Number	42
How D	Do You Hold/Retrieve a Call?	42
a.	How Do You Hold/Retrieve a Call from the Call Control Menu?	42
b.	How Do You Hold/Retrieve a Call Using the Hot Key?	43
C.	How Do You Hold/Retrieve a Call Using the Call Control Button?	43
d.	Other Ways to Retrieve a Call	43
How D	o You Transfer a Call?	44
a.	How Do You Transfer a Call from the Call Control Menu?	44
b.	How Do You Transfer a Call Using the Call Control Button?	45
C.	How Do You Transfer a Call Using the Hot Key?	45
d.	Other Ways of Transferring a Call	45
How D	Do You Conference?	45
a.	Conferencing from Call Control Menu	46
b.	How Do You Conference Using Hot Key?	47
C.	How Do You Conference Using the Conference Button?	47
d.	Other Ways to Conference	47
e.	How Do You Drop Parties from Conference?	47
How D	o You Make a New External Call?	48
How D	o You Dial Continuously to Make a Call?	48
a.	Other Ways to Dial Continuously	49
How D	Do You Redirect an Incoming Call?	49
a.	How Do You Redirect a Call Using the Right Click Menu?	49
How D	o You Park an Incoming Call?	50
How D	Do You Retrieve a System Holding Call?	50
How D	Do You Pickup a Call?	51
a.	How Do You Pickup a Call Using the Call Control Menu?	51
How D	o You Toggle Between Calls?	51
a.	How Do You Toggle Calls from Call Control Menu?	51
b.	How Do You Toggle Calls from Call Control View?	52
How D	Do You Page to a Zone?	52
How d	o you Send DTMF (Dual Tone Multi Frequency) tones?	53
How D	Do You Call Back a Station?	53

	a. How Do You Call Back from the Call Control Button?	53
	b. How Do You Call Back a Station Using Hot Key?	53
	c. Other Ways to Call Back a Station	54
	How Do You Leave Message for Another Station?	54
	a. How Do You Leave a Message from the Call Control Menu?	54
	b. Other Ways to Leave a Message	54
	How Do You Camp On to Another Station?	54
	a. How Do You Camp On from the Call Control Menu?	54
	b. Other Ways to Camp On	54
	How Do You Make an OHVA (Off Hook Voice Announce)?	55
	How Do You Use Voice Mail Features? ^{iDCS}	
	a. How Do You Open Your Voice Mailbox? ^{iDCS}	
	b. How Do You Leave Your Voice Mailbox? ^{iDCS}	
	c. How Do You Transfer a Call to a Voice Mail? ^{iDCS}	56
	d. How Do You Record a Call with Voice Mail Device? ^{iDCS}	57
	What Happens When You Dial a Busy Station?	57
	What Happens if the Trunk is Busy When You Dial an External Number?	58
	What Happens When You Answer the Trunk Call Back Call?	59
	How Do You Enter Call Note and Keyword for a Call?	59
CHAPTER 6	. BLF (Busy Lamp Field) View	60
	BLF Group	61
	a. New Group	
	b. Delete a Group	
	c. Rename a Group	
	d. Refresh Groups	
	e. New Device	
	f. New Speed Dial	
	g. Add BLFs Using Drag and Drop	
	h. Delete BLFs	
	BLF	
	a. Edit a BLF	67
	b. List View/Card View	
	c. Arrange BLFs	
	d. Refresh BLFs	
	e. Resize BLFs	69
	f. Status Icons	
	Call Control	
	a. Drag and Drop	
	b. Dial	
	c. Pickup	
	Tool Buttons	
	Options	71

a. Enable DT/DS BLF Group ^{OfficeServ}	71
b. Load DT/DS Configuration from BLF Database OfficeServ	71
c. Request Station Setup Information on Launching	
Find BLF	72
CHAPTER 7. Directory Services	73
Directory Services	73
Selection View Menus	74
Detailed List View Menus	74
Drag and Drop	74
What is a Phone Book?	75
What are the Default Phone Books?	75
What is a Network Phone Book?	75
What is a Contact?	75
How Do You Add a New Phone Book?	75
a. How Do You Add a New Phone Book from the Directory Menu?	75
b. Other Ways to Add a New Phone Book	76
How Do You Delete a Phone Book?	76
a. How Do You Add Delete a Phone Book from the Directory Menu?	76
b. Other Ways to Delete a Phone Book	77
How Do You Rename a Phone Book?	77
a. How Do You Add Delete a Phone Book from the Directory Menu?	77
b. Other Ways to Rename a Phone Book	78
How Do You Add a Network Phone Book?	78
a. How Do You Add a Network Phone Book from the Directory Menu?	78
b. Other Ways to Add a Network Phone Book	78
How Do You Remove a Network Phone Book?	79
a. How Do You Remove a Network Phone Book from the Directory Menu?	79
How Do You Add a New Contact to a Phone Book?	
a. How Do You Add a New Contact Using the Edit Menu?	
How Do You Edit a Contact?	81
a. How Do You Edit a Contact Using Edit Menu?	81
b. Other Ways to Edit a Contact	82
How Do You Delete Contacts?	
a. How Do You Delete Contacts from Edit Menu?	82
b. Other Ways to Delete Contacts	
How Do You Delete All Contacts?	
a. How Do You Delete All Contacts from Edit Menu?	
b. Other Ways to Delete All Contacts	
How Do You Search for a Particular Contact?	83

	a.	Find Results After Using the Search Option	83
	b.	Change in File Menu After Searching	84
	С.	Change in Edit Menu After Searching	84
	Directo	ry Services in Detailed List View	85
	a.	How Do You Sort Contacts?	85
	b.	How Do You Add a Contact?	85
	С.	How Do You Edit a Contact?	85
	d.	How Do You Delete a Contact?	86
	e.	How Do You Delete All Contacts from your Phone Book?	
	f.	How Do You Copy/Paste Contacts?	86
	g.	How Do You Import a Smart Control Phone Book?	
	h.	How Do You Dial a Contact?	86
	i.	How Do You Schedule a Call to a Contact?	
	j.	How Do You Transfer a Call to a Contact?	
	k.	How Do You Add a Contact to a Conference?	87
	How Do	o You Print Contacts From a Phone Book?	87
	a.	How Do You Set Up Fields for Printing?	88
	b.	How Do You Print a Single Contact?	
		g Messages to OfficeServ Call Users ^{iDCS}	
		Enable Message ^{iDCS}	
	b.	Send Message ^{iDCS}	89
	How Do	o You Import/Export Excel Files?	90
	a.	How Do You Import Excel Worksheets into Phonebook?	92
	b.	How Do You Export Phonebook Tables from Excel Worksheets?	
CHAPTER 8.	Drag a	nd Drop Services	98
	Drag a	nd Drop-How Do You Dial?	
	-	nd Drop-How Do You Transfer a Call?	
	•	nd Drop-How Do You Conference a Call?	
	•	nd Drop-How Do You Transfer a Call to a BLF?	
		nd Drop-How Do You Add BLFs?	
CHAPTER 9.	-	uler Services	
	What is	a Schedule?	100
		o You Add a New Schedule?	
	a.		
	b.		
		ncy Option in Scheduler	
	a.	How Do You Schedule an Item Once?	
	b.	How Do You Schedule an Item Daily?	
	с.	How Do You Schedule an Item Weekly?	
	d.	How Do You Schedule an Item Yearly?	
	-	der Option in Scheduler	

a. How Do You Edit a Schedule from Edit Menu? 105 b. Other Ways to Edit a Schedule 106 How Do You Delete Schedules? 106 a. How Do You Delete Schedules from Edit Menu? 106 b. Other Ways to Delete a Schedule 106 How Do You Delete All Schedules? 106 How Do You Sort Schedules? 107 How Do You Sort Schedules? 107 How Do You View Schedules? 107 CHAPTER 10. Call Log Services. 108 How Do You View Call Logs? 108 a. How Do You View All Call Logs? 109 b. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log? 109 c. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log? 109 How Do You Sort Logs? 109 How Do You Sort Use You Print Call Logs from File Menu? 109 b. How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 110 How Do You Print Call Logs? 110 How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 110 How Do You Print a Log with given Keyword? 111 How Do You Print a Log with given Keyword? 111	How Do You Edit a Schedule?	
How Do You Delete Schedules?106a. How Do You Delete Schedules from Edit Menu?106b. Other Ways to Delete a Schedule.106How Do You Delete All Schedules?106How Do You Refresh States of the Schedules?107How Do You Sort Schedules?107CHAPTER 10. Call Log Services108How Do You View Call Logs?108a. How Do You View Call Logs?108b. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log?109c. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log?109How Do You Sort Logs?109How Do You Sort Logs?109How Do You Set Logs?109How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats?109How Do You Delete All Logs?110How Do You Delete All Logs?111How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats?109How Do You Delete All Logs?111How Do You Print a Single Log?111How Do You Redial from Call Log List View?111How Do You Redial from Call Log List View?112DNIS in the Call Log.113OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice115OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice115Note for All Philocation as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows115Note for All PINS (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer)116General DDE Support.116General DDE Support.116OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows115Note for All PINS (SoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer)116 <th>a. How Do You Edit a Schedule from Edit Menu?</th> <th></th>	a. How Do You Edit a Schedule from Edit Menu?	
a. How Do You Delete Schedules from Edit Menu? 106 b. Other Ways to Delete a Schedule. 106 How Do You Delete All Schedules? 106 How Do You Refresh States of the Schedules? 107 How Do You Sort Schedules? 107 CHAPTER 10. Call Log Services. 108 How Do You View Call Logs? 108 a. How Do You View All Call Logs? 108 b. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log? 109 c. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log? 109 d. How Do You Print Call Logs? 109 d. How Do You Print Call Logs? 109 b. How Do You Delete Logs? 110 How Do You Delete Logs? 110 How Do You Delete Logs? 111 How Do You Delete Logs? 111 How Do You Delete Logs? 110 How Do You Delete All Logs? 111 How Do You Delete All Logs? 111 How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 111 How Do You Edit the Keyword and Call Note? 111	b. Other Ways to Edit a Schedule	
b. Other Ways to Delete a Schedule	How Do You Delete Schedules?	
How Do You Delete All Schedules?106How Do You Refresh States of the Schedules?107How Do You Sort Schedules?107CHAPTER 10. Call Log Services108How Do You View Call Logs?108a. How Do You View All Call Logs?108b. How Do You View Incoming Call Log?109c. How Do You Sort Logs?109d. How Do You Sort Logs?109How Do You Print Call Logs?109a. How Do You Print Call Logs?109How Do You Print Call Logs?109b. How Do You Print Call Logs?109b. How Do You Delete Logs?109b. How Do You Delete Logs?110How Do You See Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats?109b. How Do You See to a Call Log?111How Do You Save Note of a Call Log?111How Do You Print a Single Log?111How Do You Print a Single Log?111How Do You Edit the Keyword and Call Note?111How Do You Redial from Call Log List View?112DNIS in the Call Log113OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE114b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice115Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer)116General DDE Support116OfficeServ Call as DDE Server119ABBREVIATION120	a. How Do You Delete Schedules from Edit Menu?	
How Do You Refresh States of the Schedules?107How Do You Sort Schedules?107CHAPTER 10. Call Log Services108How Do You View Call Logs?108a. How Do You View All Call Logs?108b. How Do You View Incoming Call Log?109c. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log?109How Do You Sort Logs?109How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu?109B. How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu?109b. How Do You Sort Logs?109B. How Do You Delete Logs?109B. How Do You Delete Logs?110How Do You Delete Logs?110How Do You Save Note of a Call Log?111How Do You Find a Log with given Keyword?111How Do You Edit the Keyword and Call Note?111How Do You Redial from Call Log List View?112DNIS in the Call Log113OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE114b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice115Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer)116General DDE Support116OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows115Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer)116OfficeServ Call as DDE Server119ABBREVIATION120	b. Other Ways to Delete a Schedule	
How Do You Sort Schedules? 107 CHAPTER 10. Call Log Services 108 How Do You View Call Logs? 108 a. How Do You View All Call Logs? 108 b. How Do You View All Call Log? 109 c. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log? 109 How Do You View Outgoing Call Log? 109 How Do You Sort Logs? 109 How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu? 109 b. How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 b. How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 How Do You Set Logs? 110 How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 How Do You Reid Is Cog Call Log? 111 How Do You Reid Is Cog Call Log? 111 How Do You Reid Is from Call Log List View? 112 <tr< td=""><td>How Do You Delete All Schedules?</td><td></td></tr<>	How Do You Delete All Schedules?	
CHAPTER 10. Call Log Services 108 How Do You View Call Logs? 108 a. How Do You View All Call Logs? 108 b. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log? 109 c. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log? 109 How Do You Sort Logs? 109 How Do You Sort Logs? 109 How Do You Sort Logs? 109 A. How Do You Sort Logs? 109 B. How Do You Sort Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 b. How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 How Do You Delete Logs? 110 How Do You Sue Note of a Call Log? 111 How Do You Elete All Logs? 111 How Do You Find a Log with given Keyword? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log. 112 DNIS in the Call Log. 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMS (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116	How Do You Refresh States of the Schedules?	
How Do You View Call Logs?108a. How Do You View All Call Logs?108b. How Do You View Incoming Call Log?109c. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log?109How Do You Sort Logs?109How Do You Print Call Logs?109a. How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu?109b. How Do You Delete Logs?110How Do You Delete All Logs?110How Do You Delete All Logs?110How Do You Delete All Logs?111How Do You Save Note of a Call Log?111How Do You Erint a Log with given Keyword?111How Do You Edit the Keyword and Call Note?111How Do You Redial from Call Log List View?112DNIS in the Call Log.113a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE114b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows115Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer)116OfficeServ Call as DDE Server119ABBREVIATION120	How Do You Sort Schedules?	
a. How Do You View All Call Logs? 108 b. How Do You View Incoming Call Log? 109 c. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log? 109 How Do You Sort Logs? 109 How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu? 109 b. How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu? 109 b. How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu? 109 b. How Do You Delete Logs? 110 How Do You Delete Logs? 110 How Do You Delete All Logs? 111 How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 111 How Do You Find a Log with given Keyword? 111 How Do You Edit the Keyword and Call Note? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log 112 DNIS in the Call Log 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Server 119 ABBREVIATION 120 </td <td>CHAPTER 10. Call Log Services</td> <td></td>	CHAPTER 10. Call Log Services	
b. How Do You View Incoming Call Log? 109 c. How Do You Sort Logs? 109 How Do You Sort Logs? 109 How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu? 109 a. How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu? 109 b. How Do You Delete Logs? 109 How Do You Delete Logs? 109 How Do You Delete Logs? 110 How Do You Delete All Logs? 110 How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log 111 How Do You Redial as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116 OfficeServ	How Do You View Call Logs?	108
c. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log? 109 How Do You Sort Logs? 109 How Do You Print Call Logs? 109 a. How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu? 109 b. How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 How Do You Delete Logs? 110 How Do You Delete All Logs? 110 How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 111 How Do You Find a Log with given Keyword? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log 112 DNIS in the Call Log 113 a. OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Server 119 ABBREVIATION 120	a. How Do You View All Call Logs?	
How Do You Sort Logs? 109 How Do You Print Call Logs? 109 a. How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu? 109 b. How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 How Do You Delete Logs? 110 How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 110 How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 111 How Do You Find a Log with given Keyword? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log. 112 DNIS in the Call Log. 113 OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client. 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE. 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Server 119	b. How Do You View Incoming Call Log?	
How Do You Print Call Logs? 109 a. How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu? 109 b. How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 How Do You Delete Logs? 110 How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 110 How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 111 How Do You Find a Log with given Keyword? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log. 112 DNIS in the Call Log. 113 OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client. 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Server 119 ABBREVIATION 120	c. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log?	
a. How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu? 109 b. How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats? 109 How Do You Delete Logs? 110 How Do You Delete All Logs? 110 How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 111 How Do You Find a Log with given Keyword? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log 112 DNIS in the Call Log 113 OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client. 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. GrificeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer) 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Server 119	How Do You Sort Logs?	
b. How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats?	How Do You Print Call Logs?	
How Do You Delete Logs? 110 How Do You Delete All Logs? 110 How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 111 How Do You Find a Log with given Keyword? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Edit the Keyword and Call Note? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log 112 DNIS in the Call Log 113 OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Server 119	a. How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu?	
How Do You Delete All Logs? 110 How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 111 How Do You Find a Log with given Keyword? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log. 112 CHAPTER 11. DDE in OfficeServ Call 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client. 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Server 119 ABBREVIATION 120	b. How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Forma	ats? 109
How Do You Save Note of a Call Log? 111 How Do You Find a Log with given Keyword? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Edit the Keyword and Call Note? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log. 112 CHAPTER 11. DDE in OfficeServ Call 113 OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client. 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Server 119	How Do You Delete Logs?	
How Do You Find a Log with given Keyword? 111 How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Edit the Keyword and Call Note? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log 111 CHAPTER 11. DDE in OfficeServ Call 113 OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client. 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Server 119	How Do You Delete All Logs?	
How Do You Print a Single Log? 111 How Do You Edit the Keyword and Call Note? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log. 112 CHAPTER 11. DDE in OfficeServ Call 113 OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Server 119	How Do You Save Note of a Call Log?	
How Do You Edit the Keyword and Call Note? 111 How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log 112 CHAPTER 11. DDE in OfficeServ Call 113 OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 119 ABBREVIATION 120	How Do You Find a Log with given Keyword?	
How Do You Redial from Call Log List View? 112 DNIS in the Call Log. 112 CHAPTER 11. DDE in OfficeServ Call 113 OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client. 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Server 119 ABBREVIATION 120	How Do You Print a Single Log?	
DNIS in the Call Log. 112 CHAPTER 11. DDE in OfficeServ Call 113 OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client. 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Server 119	How Do You Edit the Keyword and Call Note?	
CHAPTER 11. DDE in OfficeServ Call 113 OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client. 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 116 OfficeServ Call as DDE Server 119 ABBREVIATION 120	How Do You Redial from Call Log List View?	
OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client. 113 a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE 114 b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice 115 c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows 115 Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer) 116 General DDE Support 119 ABBREVIATION 120	DNIS in the Call Log	
a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE	CHAPTER 11. DDE in OfficeServ Call	113
b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice	OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client	
c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows	a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE	
Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer)	b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice	
General DDE Support	c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows	
OfficeServ Call as DDE Server	Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer)	
ABBREVIATION	General DDE Support	
	OfficeServ Call as DDE Server	119
SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT & LIMITED WARRANTY	ABBREVIATION	
	SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT & LIMITED WARRANTY	

CHAPTER 1. Introduction

This manual describes main functions, installation, various functional settings, and examples of usage of the OfficeServ Call.

This manual includes a phased description of OfficeServ Call, from a fundamental understanding of the processes that shall be performed for the use of OfficeServ Call. Also, the layout of this manual is useful for users to select and read only the contents that they need to check. Before using the OfficeServ Call, users need to be familiar with this manual. Keep this manual handy before installing or using the program.

If you have any question or problem while using the OfficeServ Call program, contact your local distributor.

Conventions

The following special paragraphs are used in this document to point out information that must be read. This information may be set-off from the surrounding text, but is always preceded by a bold title in capital letters.



WARNING

Indicates a potentially hazardous situation which if not avoided, could result in death or serious injury.



CAUTION

Indicates a potentially hazardous situation, which if not avoided, may result in minor or moderate injury. It may also be used to alert against unsafe practices.



NOTE

Indicates additional information as a reference.



OPERATION PROCEDURES

Indicates the operation procedures that should be executed in order.

Overview

Introduction to the OfficeServ Call

OfficeServ Call is a call manager application which supports contact management, scheduling and call logging, as well as providing access to some digital telephone facility programming.

Station Setup Services

You can control your station parameters using these services. You can set/reset DND (Do Not Disturb), Call Forwarding, etc, using the simple user interface provided.

Call Control Services

You can access all the basic and extended services of your Samsung Telephone System using OfficeServ Call. You can make calls, answer calls, release calls and manage multiple calls at your desktop. You can also establish multiparty audio conference through OfficeServ Call without having to remember any PBX feature codes. Some special features like redialling and continuous dialing are supported.

Directory Services

OfficeServ Call allows you to maintain multiple phone books of your choice to keep track of your contacts. You may also print all your contacts' information in four different formats. OfficeServ Call directories provide Drag and Drop functionality for easy call control. The Directory Services feature also allows OfficeServ Call to identify the caller if the contact information is available in OfficeServ Call or other applications using a Dynamic Data Exchange (DDE) mechanism.

Scheduler Services

OfficeServ Call allows you to schedule a telephone call or activation of some of the station setup options for execution at some later point of time. A note that will show at the time of execution may be entered to explain why this call or feature was scheduled.

A pop-up window gives you the option to cancel any scheduled item at the scheduled time of execution or to change the time of execution.

Call Log Services

OfficeServ Call's Call Log maintains a record of all incoming and outgoing calls from the digital telephone while the application is active.

Call log records contain a Notes field for recording information about a particular call and a Keyword field to enable the logs to be searched. OfficeServ Call allows you to print individual Call Log records, selected Call Log records or an entire Call Log. This will allow you to archive hard copies of the logs for later perusal.

Busy Lamp Field View

The BLF view is a distinctive new feature of the version 5.1. It can be used to monitor all the stations and trunks in a user configurable BLF view.

You can drag a connected call from the call control view and drop the call to the BLF view to transfer it. You can also make a call or pick up a call by double clicking the BLF.

CHAPTER 2. Installation

System Requirements

Computer System

- Microsoft Windows 2000 (Service Pack 2 or higher), Windows XP (Service Pack 1 or higher) operating system software
- Pentium 4 1.6 GHz (or higher) microprocessor
- 512 MB (or higher) RAM
- 20 GB (or larger) hard disk drive
- CD-ROM
- 10/100 Network Interface Card (NIC)
- Standard VGA monitor, keyboard, and mouse
- TCP/IP configuration
- Database Engine : Microsoft Jet(4.0 SP3 or higher), MDAC(2.7 or higher)
- 'File and printer sharing for Microsoft Networks' has to be enabled if you want to open a network phone book

System Users and Password Requirements

- <u>Installation</u>: Users must be logged on with an Administrator privileges to install this program successfully. Administrators have complete and unrestricted access to the computer/domain.
- <u>Execution</u>: There are no user requirements to run OfficeServ Call successfully. Users with restricted membership will be able to execute the application without any problems.

How to Install

Before you run setup, locate the IP address of the PC on which the OfficeServ Link application is installed, you will need this information to complete the installation of OfficeServ Call. OfficeServ Link distributes the messages from the telephone system to each client. You may need to ask your system administrator for this IP address.

Insert the OfficeServ Applications CD-ROM and follow the onscreen menus to locate the OfficeServ Call setup link.

Follow the instructions in the Setup program.

1. On Starting setup you will see the message box shown below.



If you have Smart Control Network or OfficeServ Call 5.0 installed, click cancel at the welcome dialog box, exit setup, and uninstall the Smart Control Network or older version of iDCS Call. Otherwise click OK to continue with the installation.

2. Click the Next button in the Welcome dialog box to continue Setup or the Cancel button to exit Setup.

Select the County using the drop down menu and an appropriate End User License Agreement will be displayed according to the selected country.

OfficeServ Call (LC) Setup		×
	Welcome to the InstallShield Wizard for OfficeServ Call The InstallShield(R)Wizard will install OfficeServ Call on your computer. Select your country and click Next to continue. An appropriate EULA (End User License Agreement) will be displayed according to the country you select. Country:	
InstallShield		Cancel

3. Read carefully the Software License Agreement. After reading the Software License and if you accept all the terms, click Yes button.

OfficeServ Call (LC) Setup		×
License Agreement Please read the following licens	e agreement carefully.	
	Press the PAGE DOWN key to see the rest of the agreement. Software License Agreement & Limited Warranty For OfficeServ Call for iDCS Keyphone Series. Samsung Telecommunications America, L.P. IMPORTANT, READ CAREFULLY:	_
InstallShield	Karak Yes No	

4. Next, you will see the Switch Type Dialog Box. Choose your switch type.



Note: R1 Series and Other DCS systems are currently not supported.

5. Choose the destination location where OfficeServ Call will be installed.

OfficeServ Call (LC) Setup Choose Destination Location		×
Select folder where setup will in		
	Setup will install OfficeServ Call in the following folder. To install to this folder, click Next, To install to a different folder, click Browse and select another folder. Destination Folder C:\Program Files\Samsung Electronics\OfficeServ Call	
InstallShield	Cancel	

6. Next, you will see the Select Components Dialog Box. Choose the components you want to install.

OfficeServ Call (LC) Setup Select Features Select the features setup will in	istall.	X
	Select the features you want to install, and deselect the features you do not want to install.	
InstallShield	Cancel	

7. The following dialog box appears. Click Next button after entering the program folder name.



Files are copied to your selected directory.

When you uninstall the OfficeServ Call, the databases are not deleted. If you have installed the OfficeServ Call before, you will see the following dialog boxes.

Question	×
?	Do you want to overwrite the phonebook database file?
	Yes No

Select Yes or No button. If you select the Yes button, your previous Contact Database file is deleted and the new empty database file will be overwritten.

Smart Control Network database is not compatible with OfficeServ Call database.	
---	--

Question	×
?	Do you want to overwrite the call log database file and the BLF configuration database file?
	Yes No

Select Yes or No button. If you select the Yes button, your previous call log database and BLF Database file is deleted and the new empty database file will be overwritten.



8. Change the dialing properties, if needed. The dialog box below shows the properties.

Edit Location	<u>?</u> ×
General Area Code Rules Calling Card	1
Location name: My Location	
Specify the location from which you will be dialing.	
Country/region:	Area <u>c</u> ode:
United States of America	972
Dialing rules When dialing from this location, use the following rules: To access an outside line for long- <u>d</u> istance calls, dial: To access an outside line for long- <u>d</u> istance calls, dial: To disable call <u>w</u> aiting, dial: Dial using: Inne Deulse	9 9
OK Cance	Apply

 When the following Communication Parameter Setting dialog box appears, enter the IP address of OfficeServ Link in the Server IP Address edit box. You can leave Port No and Trace type.

Communication Parameters	×				
Connect to Server [OfficeServ Link]					
Server IP Address : 192.168.1.132					
Server Port No : 6000					
Trace Type O Level 1 O Level 2					
OK Cancel About	7				

10. If you want to run OfficeServ Call when you start Windows, click the Yes button in the following message box.

Question	×
?	Do you want to add the OfficeServ Call icon to the startup folder?
	Yes No

11. If OfficeServ Call has been installed successfully, you will see the following message. Click Finish button to complete the Setup.

OfficeServ Call (LC) Setup	
	InstallShield Wizard Complete
	The InstallShield Wizard has successfully installed OfficeServ Call. Click Finish to exit the wizard.
InstallShield	K Back Finish Cancel

CHAPTER 3. Overview of OfficeServ Call

When OfficeServ Call is run for the first time, a dialog "Select A Subscriber Line" will appear to allow the user to select a phone line from a set of lines configured for the user.

Lines:	DCS Line 2017	-
Address:	2017	-
	vider Information: ung DCS Service Provid	der

After the selection of a Phone Line, the same line will be opened each time the OfficeServ Call is run. The user has the option of changing the phone line by selecting the [PhoneLine] option from the main menu under the [Option] menu item.

🔍 🔍 OT	liceServ Call	- root - 2001		Status	
Eile	Edit [l Control Stati	ion Setup) Qp	tion Help
Selection Per	sonal		5 🙋 🛃	66	200
	Name	Company	Office	Home	Mobile
4	.	Det	ailed List Viev	v	
	Number		Name	Statu	s Dur
1	<u>.</u>	(Call Control	View	×
	Status Bar	Fwd None	DND Locked	CallBack Ms	g List Auto Ans
		٨	lain Screen		

When you start OfficeServ Call, the main screen is displayed.

The table below describes the items shown in the main screen:

Item	Purpose			
Status	Display the status of your application i.e. the connection status, login name, telephone extension, and Station Programmed Message.			
Menu Bar	Display the different menu options categorized by the services provided			
Selection View	Selection View is used to access various OfficeServ Call services.			
Detailed List View	View the detailed contents of all the OfficeServ Call services. The Personal Phone Book is selected by default. In Detailed List View, Directory Services displays the contents of all the contacts. Its contents are as follows : Name, Company, Office phone, Home phone, Mobile Scheduler Services displays the details of all the scheduled items. Its contents are as follows : Function, Frequency, Time, State of Schedule Call Log Services displays the details of the logged calls. Its contents are as follows : Name, From/To, Date, Duration, Status			
Call Control View Allow user to perform call control options like dialing, transferring conferencing, etc.				
Display the current status of the telephone such as DND, Call ForStatus BarMsg List (list of stations that left messages), Call Back (station on Call Back is set.), and whether your station is currently locked.				

Status Bar

The Status Bar shows the current status of several key features supported by your digital telephone, your station such as DND (Do Not Disturb), Locked, Msg List (list of stations that left messages), etc. The illustration below shows the Status Bar.

All Fwd DND Locked CallBack Msg List Auto Ans
Status Bar

The highlighted panel indicates that the corresponding features are activated.

Status	Description		
Call Forwarding Type	Displays the call forwarding type if the call forwarding feature is set.		
DND	Displays the Do Not Disturb mode.		
Locked	Displays when the station is Locked.		
CallBack	Displays if the user has set a Call Back on other station.		

Status	Description	
Msg List Displays if other station has left a message for the user or if the voice messages left in the voice mailbox.		
Auto Ans	Indicates Auto Answer set for any call types like Internal, External, Hold Recall etc.	

You can set or reset any of the above station features by double clicking in the corresponding panel.

Selection View

You can select the item displayed in the Detailed List View from the Selection View.



If you click on each item, you can see the detailed menu items, e.g. If you click on Local Phone Book, you will see the following options:



Detailed List Views

Directory Service

Name	Company	Office	Home	Mobile
S. Lee	Samsung Elec.	15883366	2-15883366	15883366
<u> </u>				

Scheduler Service

Function F	requency	/ Time	State
🕼 Do Not Disturb	Weekly	Every Mon 8:00 PM T	Res
🚱 Set All Calls FWD to 2002	Once	From7/23/2002 8:12 P	Sch
()⇔ Make Call to 2021	Daily	From8:12 PM To 8:14	Sch
🔒 Station Lock	Once	From7/22/2002 8:13 P	Sch

Call Log Service

From/To	Date	Duration	Status
2021	07/22_08:14 PM	00:00:01	Connected
2021	07/22_08:14 PM	00:00:00	Connected
	2021	2021 07/22 08:14 PM	2021 07/22 08:14 PM 00:00:01

Call Control View

The lower end of the main window is Call Control View

Number	Name	Status	Duration	Details
()\$ 2021	S. Lee	Connected	00:00:12	
•				•

Configuration

You can set various options provided in the OfficeServ Call software using the pull down menu the Option menu.

Option	Purpose	
Open BLF View	Opens Busy Lamp Field window.	
Open EasySet	Opens the EasySet Login Page in the web browser	
Call Notification Method	Notify user about caller detail and Database Option between OfficeServ Call and Outlook	
DDE	Allows user to set the DDE Option for displaying the Contact Information	
Database Synchronization	Allows user to synchronize the local phone book with the network phone book if it is connected.	
Phone Lines	Allows user to elect the Device and Address assigned for the user.	
Set Environment→Station Password	Allows user to save the station pass code for the features such as Station Lock, Station Programmed Message, and so on.	
Set Environment→Page Zone Name	Allows user to set page zone names	
Set Environment→Time Out	Allows user o set the time out for various services	
Set Environment→EasySet URL	Allows user to change the EasySet URL.	
Set Environment→System Tray	Allows user to enable/disable the Window Tray option	
Set Environment→Free Dial	Allows user to enable/disable the Free Dial and configure the shortcut keys	
Set Environment→Language	Allows user to set one of the supported languages: English, Italian, or Korean	

How Do You Open BLF View?

If you select this option the BLF window will be opened.

How Do You Open EasySet?

This feature works only if your telephone system supports OfficeServ EasySet, and OfficeServ EasySet has been installed on a web server on your site.

If you select the Open EasySet option for the first time, the EasySet URL dialog will appear.

En	ter EasySet URL	8
	Enter the Easyset URL (http://~). http:// OK Cancel	

The URL should begin with 'http://'. If you click on OK, the entered URL will open in the web browser.

This URL is saved and used from now on. If you want to change the URL, select Option \rightarrow Set Environment \rightarrow EasySet URL.

The F12 function key is the hot key of 'Open EasySet'

How Do You Change DDE Options?

To change DDE (Dynamic Data Exchange) related options, select Option \rightarrow DDE. Option from the Option menu.

<u>D</u> DE Settings	
Reinitialize DDE	
Uninitialize DDE	

a. DDE Settings

Check the 'Enable DDE for Incoming Calls' checkbox if you want DDE for incoming calls. You can specify the call type, i.e. enable DDE for internal incoming calls or external incoming calls or both. You can also specify whether the contact search should be based on Caller ID or DNIS (Dialed Number Identification Services).

Select the database application of your choice, such as GoldMine. This application will be a DDE server and OfficeServ Call will be a DDE client. Enter the selected application's EXE file path in the program's 'Path' box. You can even browse to find the EXE file using the Browse button.

Enter the database file in the database's 'Path' box. This is the file that contains your contact records. The Test button helps you to check whether you have entered the selected application's EXE file path properly. <u>See 'DDE Support in OfficeServ Call' for more information</u>.

b. Reinitialize DDE/Uninitialize DDE

If you want to disable DDE while maintaining the DDE settings, select the Un-initialize DDE option. To enable the DDE without changing the current DDE options, select the Reinitialize DDE option.

The DDE connection is closed when you close the DDE server application. If you want to recover the DDE connection without restarting the OfficeServ Call, use the Reinitialize DDE option.

However, if you have selected 'Other' as a DDE server application, you have to launch the DDE server application prior to selecting the Reinitialize DDE option.

How Do You Set Up Call Notification?

Click on the Options menu and select the Call Notification Method. There are General options and Database options.

a. How Do You Configure General Options?



How Do You Display Incoming Call Details?

For External Calls: Select the 'For Incoming External Calls' option if you want to identify the external caller. A dialog box, or property sheet, will appear (figure below), with which you can identify the caller if the caller's number is available in the Directory database.

		J Kerry
Choose Picture	J Kerry President	1 214 9293975 V J.Kerry@office.com V
Memo	1	
		OK Cancel

For Internal Calls: Select the 'For Incoming Internal Calls' option if you want to identify the internal caller. A dialog box, or Property sheet, will appear (figure below), with which you can identify the caller if the caller's number is available in the Directory database.

			Madona L.
Choose Picture Memo	Madona L. STA Sales Secretary		
Mento		OK	Cancel

For Outgoing Calls: Select the 'For Outgoing Calls' option if you want to identify the outgoing called number. A dialog box will appear (Figure below) with which you can identify the number, if the given number data is available in the Directory database.

_			S. Lee
Choose Picture	Who S. Lee Co. Samsung Elec. Dept.Network R&D Title Engineer 💌	Office 1 82 31 15883366 Email 1 Office Addr.	A A
Memo			
		ОКС	ancel



If there is more than one contact in the Directory database which matches the incoming phone number, then, the first contact which matches will be shown.

How Do You Bring OfficeServ Call to the Front for an Incoming Call?

Select the 'Bring OfficeServ Call to Front' option if you want OfficeServ Call to be maximized automatically on an incoming call while it is running in the minimized mode. The application also comes to the front if it's in the background. If this option is not selected for an incoming call, the minimized OfficeServ Call window will flash.

How Do You Play a Sound File for an Incoming Call?

Clicking on the 'Play Sound for Incoming Calls' option causes a sound file to be played through the multimedia card on the PC when a call comes in. You can select the *.wav file from the Open dialog box by clicking the Browse button. You can test the wave file that you have selected by clicking the Test button.

How Do You Minimize OfficeServ Call when an Incoming Call dropped?

Clicking on the 'Minimize OfficeServ Call on hanging up' option causes the OfficeServ Call to be minimized when an incoming call is dropped. This option takes effect only when the System Tray option is enabled.

b. How Do You Configure Database Options?

Call Notification - Database	
Search OfficeServ Call Cont	
Search Outlook Contacts	Properties
Search Web Contents	Properties
OK Cancel	Help

If you have set a 'Display Call Details' option (above), OfficeServ Call searches database records to get calling or called party records with phone number as a key. You can choose which database to search. Currently OfficeServ Call supports the internal OfficeServ Call Contacts database,Microsoft Outlook Contacts and Web Contents.

If you are using a network phone book, the contact note will be stored in the ContactNotes folder under the network phone book folder. If you mark the 'Save all contact notes in my computer', all contact notes will be saved in your local ContactNotes folder afterwards.

Search Web Contents allows OfficeServ Call to open the default internet browser and insert a predefined URL with the addition of CLID or DID information.

The insertion of **[CLID]** or **[DID]** into the URL search string will tell OfficeServ Call to Insert either the current Caller ID or DID number into the URL Request String.

Enter	the Request String		
	inter the request string to open DID].	a web page with [CLID] o	r
-	http://	Cancel	

Example: http://www.google.com/search?[CLID]&btnG=Google+Search

Note: If you want to use other PIMs, refer to DDE Support in OfficeServ Call

How Do You Configure Outlook Contacts Searching Properties?

The Properties button displays a dialog that gives details for the Outlook Contacts searching options.

Database Tele	ephone Mask I	Formats	×
Contact Data	base		
Folder Name	: Contacts		Browse
– Mask Format:	s		
New Mask :			
	Add	Remove	1
Available :			
	Add	Remove	1
Active :		Themeve	
Active .			
	[[]	<u></u>	
ſ	OK	Cance	- 1
<u></u>			

Mask Formats: You can convert the OfficeServ Call phone number format to the one used in your Outlook contacts by applying a mask to the number.

It is important to be consistent with the format of numbers in Outlook. Each different format will require a different mask, and the more masks you have the longer a search can take. It may be worthwhile editing in Outlook to reduce these.

Common Masks: OfficeServ Call will pass a phone number in international format. For USA this is 11 digits, starting with 1 as the country code, then three digits for the area code, then the 8 digits of the local number. So, for example, a typical Dallas number may look like 12147871111.

It is unlikely anyone would store a number in this format in Outlook. A typical format for Outlook, for the same number, would be (972) 987-2900. Note, however, that newer versions of Outlook have a selectable option that converts all new numbers into the International format.

Once you have entered or selected your required masks, delete any unwanted masks, and move the most commonly needed ones to the top of the mask list. This list is accessed in order by the search program, and tailoring the order can reduce the time required for the search.

Custom Masks: Please note that Outlook formats vary. Outlook phone numbers are configurable into any format the user wants to use. The task of the mask is to convert the inherent OfficeServ Call format into the Outlook format.

The mask can be constructed of the characters +, -, (,), 0 to 9, B (= blank), D (= delete character), and X (wild card character).

To follow the above example through and make a mask to translate 12147871111 to (214) 787-1111, go through the logic from the first character of the OfficeServ Call format and Outlook format to the last, adding and subtracting characters. So you proceed as follows:

OfficeServ Call Format	Outlook Contacts Format
12147871111	(214) 787-1111

From the OfficeServ Call format you need to delete the 1 country code {D}, add a left bracket {D(}before you use the first three digits of the OfficeServ Call format number (in this example 214, but you use the X wild card to generalize the mask) {D(XXX}.

Then you want to add a right bracket, followed by a space (blank = B) {D(XXX)B}.

Then 3 digits of the OfficeServ number are to be used {D(XXX)BXXX}.

Next we need to add the hyphen, '-' to the format {D(XXX)BXXX-}. Then follow the last 4 digits {D(XXX)BXXX-XXXX}.

So the mask required in this example is D(XXX)BXXX-XXXX

Summary/Rules: Wherever we have a digit in the OfficeServ Call number that we wanted to use in the Outlook format we use an X.

Whenever we have any digits in the OfficeServ Call number we don't want to use in the Outlook format, for example the country code, we delete them using D.

If there are other characters in Outlook that we don't have in the OfficeServ Call format, we add them in, providing they are allowable characters.

The mask is created in the 'Database Telephone Mask Formats' dialogue box, in the 'New Mask' entry panel. Click 'Add' to move it to the 'Available' panel, and then 'Add' to make it 'Active'.

Remember to remove all unwanted masks, and move your most commonly required masks to the top of the mask list using the arrows on the right of the 'Active' box.

You may need to keep XXX or XXXX if you want to trigger on internal calls.

To deactivate a mask, select the mask in the 'Active' box and click on the 'Remove' button above the box. The selected mask will be moved into the 'Available' box.

To completely remove a mask, move the mask from the 'Active' box into the 'Available' box first. Then select the mask in the 'Available' box and click on the 'Remove' button above the 'Available' box.

Note: OfficeServ Call and Outlook get your location information for dialing from the Windows Telephony settings located in your Windows Control Panel.

Contact Database: You can choose the folder in which to search for the record. It is set to the Contacts folder by default. If you want to change, click on the Browse button, and the following dialog box will appear.

Contact Database Information	×
Outlook:administrator Microsoft Mail Shared Folders Personal Folders Deleted Items Outbox Sent Items Calendar Calendar Friends Journal Notes Tasks	
OK Cancel]

The Contact Database Information dialog box will show the entire folders of your Outlook program. You can select only a Contacts folder or its sub folders.

How Do You Set Database Synchronization Options

This option is available only when the network database is connected. If you have the same contact record on your local phone book and the network phone book, the previous one will be updated.

If you select the Option→Database Synchronization, an OfficeServ Call Database Synchronization Scheduling Dialog box will appear.

Select the month, week, and specify the time. This scheduler should be running on that scheduled time to execute the scheduled database synchronization.

If you click on Apply button, changes will be saved. If you click on Cancel button, changes will not be saved but the synchronization scheduler will remain running.

If you click on Close button, the scheduler will be terminated.

🔁 Scheduler - OfficeServ Call DB Synchonization 📃 🔲 🕨	<
on: 1 at: 00:00	
on: SUN at: 00:00	
■ Run Once Immediately on: 9 /16/2004 ■ at: 11:46 →	
Apply Cancel Close	J

How Do You Change Phone Lines Options?

To change the currently used phone line, select Option \rightarrow Phone Lines from the Option menu.

Selet A Subscriver Line	8
Lines: DCS Line 2017 Address: 2017	
Service Provider Information: Samsung DCS Service Provider	
OK Cancel Help	

From the above dialog box, 'Lines' means the current selected line and 'Address' means the real phone address.

	Selet A Subscriver Li	ine 🛛 🛞
	Lines:	DCS Line 2017
	Address:	DCS Line 2017
1		DCS Line 2018 DCS Line 2019 DCS Line 2020
I	Service Provider II	DCS Line 2021
I	Samsund	DCS Line 2022 DCS Line 2023 DCS Line 2024
I	OK Ca	ncel Help
Į		

When you click the dropdown button of Lines you will see a list of available lines. You can select one of those lines.

You have to select a line (such as 2XXX, 3XXX) which corresponds to your real phone line. After changing the current line ($201 \rightarrow 202$), you will see the following dialog boxes.

Call	×	Call	×
⚠	DCS Line 201 has been closed!	1	DCS Line 202 has been opened!
	ОК		ОК

How Do You Set Environments?

a. Station Password

Select the Option→Set Environment→Station Password option to set the Station Password.

Enter Password		
Enter the password,	Tencel	

You will be asked to enter the station password when you try to lock/unlock your digital telephone; this will also be required to access the station programmed message list, or to open the BLF window.

b. Page Zone Names

Select the Option→Set Environment→Page Zone Name option to set Page Zone Name in the Page Zone Names dialog box.

Page Zone Names 🛛 🐨
Paging Zone: Page Zone 0 Zone Name:
OK Cancel Apply Help

Select the zone you want to set and click on OK button.

c. Time Out Parameters

Click on the Options menu and choose the Set Environment \rightarrow Time Out option. When the Time Out dialog box appears, you can set the time out, in seconds, for the Auto Answer, Call Notifier and Dial Duration (retry) intervals.

Timeout Values	
<u>A</u> uto Answer	3 (sec)
<u>C</u> all Notifier	10 🕂 (sec)
<u>D</u> ial Duration	30 📫 (sec)
OK Cancel	Help

Option	Purpose
Auto Answer	Sets the time for the OfficeServ Call to answer automatically
Call Notifier	Sets the time to clear the call notifier window
Dial Duration	Sets the time to retry, if you want to dial continuously

How Do You Set Time Out for Auto Answer?

The timer value entered in this field determines the delay before the program will automatically answer a call, if that type of call has been flagged for Auto Answer. You can enter the time out value in the AutoAnswer field of the Time Out dialog as shown above. Enter a value between 1 and 60.

How Do You Set Time Out for Call Notifier?

The timer value entered in this field determines the length of time the Call Notifier window will remain open. You can enter the time out value in the Call Notifier field of the Time Out dialog as shown above. Enter a value between 3 and 300.

How Do You Set Dial Duration for Continuous Dialing?

The timer value entered in this field determines the length of time the application will wait before redialing when the Continuous Dial feature has been activated. You can enter the retry value in the Dial Duration field of the Time Out dialog as shown above. Enter a value between 10 and 300.
d. EasySet URL

Click on the Options menu and choose the Set Environment→EasySet URL option. When the Easy Set URL dialog box appears, you can enter the EasySet URL used to connect the easy set server in that dialog box.

Enter EasySet URL	
Enter the Easyset URL (http://~). http://	

You will also need to determine the EasySet URL. When you run OfficeServ Call and EasySet at the same time, the station setup options such as DND set by OfficeServ Call may not be updated instantly on EasySet. You can refresh the EasySet status by clicking the 'Reload' button in EasySet.

e. System Tray

When you want to load/unload OfficeServ Call into System Tray, select Set Environment \rightarrow System Tray option. If System Tray option is enabled, the notification window shown below will be displayed at the bottom of right corner in your monitor for an incoming call.



If you click on this window, the OfficeServ Call Main window will appear, and this window will disappear. This Notifier will disappear when the 'Call Notifier' timer expires. See the 'Time Out Parameters' section for the details of the timeout. Only the CID number will be displayed when a matching contact is not found.

CHAPTER 4. Station Setup

You can set your station parameters with various features supported by your DCS Keyset. This menu has the following options.

Item	Purpose
Station Lock/Unlock	Locks/Unlocks the station from making or receiving any call
Station Prog. Msg.	You can leave a Station Programmed Message for your station.
Do Not Disturb	Sets/Resets your station to Do Not Disturb mode
Call Forward	Forwards calls from your station to another station (or voicemail)
Follow Me	Redirects calls from another station to your station
Message List	Displays the list of messages left by other stations on your station and the number of messages left in your voice mail box ^{iDCS} .
Call Back Status	Displays the station number or trunk number which you have set for a call back.
Auto Answer	To auto answer after the time set in the Time Out option
Auto Trunk Call Back	To set trunk call back automatically when trunk is busy
Open EasySet	Opens the EasySet Login Page in the web browser



The Station Setup features works only when you have the right to change the corresponding key telephone features. If some station setup features don't work, ask your key telephone system administrator your Class of Service contents.

How Do You Set a Station Lock/Unlock?

a. How Do You Set a Station Lock?

You can lock your station using the Station Lock option. This prevents other people from making calls through your station in your absence. It also prevents you from receiving incoming calls.

Station Lock	
Enter the password	
OK Cancel	Help

Once you click on the Station Lock option, a Station Lock dialog box will appear. Enter your password and click OK to lock your station. You can also double click in the Locked panel of the Status Bar to change Station Lock/Unlock.

b. How Do You Unlock Your Station?

To unlock your station, click Station Unlock option in the Station Setup menu and enter the password or double click in the Locked panel of the Status Bar to enter the password in the dialog box.

How Do You Set a Station Programmed Message?

You can set a Station Programmed Message for your station if you are not available to take a call.

	Station Prog. Msg.	
	<u>S</u> elect Message:	
	09: IN A MEETING	
J	OK Cancel	Help

To Set a Station Programmed Message, click on Station Setup menu, and select Station Prog. Msg. option. A Station Programmed Message dialog box will appear. Then select the message from the pull down menu and click OK button.

The OfficeServ Call title bar will show the type of Station Programmed Message you have left for your station. In the above case, the title bar will display OfficeServ Call-IN A MEETING.

0111CESERV Call - IN A MEETING - 2001

If you want to clear the message select '00 : Cancel Station Programmed Message' option from the pull down menu of the Station Programmed Message dialog box.

.

How Do You Set Your Station to Do Not Disturb Mode?

If you do not want to be disturbed with incoming calls, you can set your station to Do Not Disturb (DND) mode.

a. How Do You Set/Reset DND on Your Station from Station Setup Menu?

Click on Station Setup menu, and select DND option. If there is an incoming call when you have set your station to DND mode, the caller will get a DND message. To reset your station from DND mode, select the DND option from the Station Setup menu again.

b. How Do You Set/Reset DND on Your Station from Status Bar?

You have the easy option of clicking in the DND panel of the Status Bar to Set /Reset DND.

c. How Do You Set/Reset DND Using Hot Key?

Press F8 function key to set your station to DND mode. To reset your station back to normal mode, press F8 function key again.

How Do You Set Call Forwarding?

You can forward internal and external calls to another station. You can also forward your calls from an external party to an external telephone number.

a. How Do You Set Call Forwarding from the Station Setup Menu?

Click on Station Setup menu, and select Call Forward option. The Call Forward dialog box will appear (Figure below).

b. How Do You Set Call Forwarding from Status Bar?

You have the easy option of double clicking in the Forward panel of the Status Bar to get the Call Forward dialog box.

	Call	Forward		8
		Forward Type	Forward To	
١		C All Calls	▼	
I		O On Busy	•	
I		On No Answer	•	
I		O On Busy/No Answe	Y	
I		C External Calls	▼	
I		DND Forward	V	
		OK Clear	Cancel Help	

Select the Forward Type. Enter the number of the other station in Forward To field and click on Set button to enable the Call Forward. You can also select the station from the Call Forward selection list to choose any of the previously entered numbers.

Option	Purpose	
All Calls	Forward all Incoming calls	
On Busy Forward Incoming calls to another station, if your station is busy		
On No Answer	Forward Incoming calls to another station, if you do not answer.	
On Busy/ If call is Busy or No Answer, the call is forward to designated nu		
No Answer when you select this option.		
External Calls	Forward your external calls to an external number The external call forward will be disabled when you are using OfficeServ systems. Instead, you can set an external numbers as a forward destination regardless of the forward type with the OfficeServ systems	
DND Forward	Forward incoming calls to another station, if your station is set to DND mode.	

c. How Do You Reset Call Forwarding?

Click on Station Setup menu, and select Call Forward option. The Call Forward dialog box will appear. Click on the Clear button to clear all types of call forwarding at your station.

Click on the Call Forward Tool Bar button to get the Call Forward dialog box. Click on the Clear button to clear all types of call forwarding at your station. If forwarding is set for any type of call, the Status Bar of your station will display this. You can also click on this highlighted panel of your Status Bar to get the Call Forward dialog box.

How Do You Redirect Calls to Follow You?

You can redirect your calls from another station to your current station. Click on Station Setup menu and select 'Follow Me' option. This will display the Follow Me dialog box. Enter station number from which all the calls will be forwarded to you. If there is an incoming call at that station, the call will be redirected to your station.

Follow Me		
Station that should follow:		
OK Cancel	Help	

How Do You Check Your Station's Message List?

You can check your station's message list and number of voice messages left in your voice mailbox.

a. How Do You Check Your Station's Message List from the Station Setup Menu?

Click on the Station Setup menu, and select the Message List option to check whether any other station has left a message for you when your station was busy or when you did not answer. The message list will contain the station number that has left the message for you. Station Setup menu's Message List option will be disabled if no station has left a message for you.



You can select the station, and call the station back by clicking the Dial button. You can clear the selected message by clicking the Clear button or clear all the messages by selecting the Clear All button.

If someone left a voice message in your voice mailbox, you can see the number of messages left. It will be displayed VM (number of messages) shown above. If you select the VM(#) entry and click the Dial button, you can connect to your mailbox. Clear and Clear All buttons will not work with voice messages.



You can control your voice mail using the OfficeServ Call only if the voice mail card has been installed and is running on your switch.

b. How Do You Check Your Station's Message List from the Status Bar?

The Status Bar will show Msg List if another station has left a message on your station. Click in the highlighted panel of the Status Bar to get the Waiting Messages dialog box.

How Do You Check Your Station's Call Back Status?

Click on the Station Setup menu and select the Call Back Status option to check whether you have left a call back message on any other station. This option will be enabled only if you have set a Call Back on some other station. A Call Back dialog box will appear showing the station number.

Call Back	
Call Back <u>S</u> et On: 2017	Clear All Clear Close Help

Press Clear button if you wish to clear the Call Back to this station.

The Status Bar will show CallBack if you have set call back on some other station. Click in this highlighted panel to get the above dialog box. If you have set call back on more than one station, you can clear them one by one if needed.

How Do You Set OfficeServ Call to Auto Answer?

Click on the Station Setup menu and choose the Auto Answer option. You can select the type of call you want the station to auto answer from Call Types in the Auto Answer dialog box.

Auto Answer	
Call Type Call Type Callback Internal Call Hold Recall Transfer Recall External Call	
OK Cancel	Help

If any of the Call Type options is selected, OfficeServ Call will automatically answer that type of call after the time, which is set in the Time Out option. You have the option of clicking in the AutoAns panel of the Status Bar to change Auto Answer options.

How Do You Set Auto Trunk Call Back?

To set trunk call back automatically, select the Auto Trunk Call Back option from the Station Setup menu. To deselect the option, click on the Auto Trunk Call Back option again. Note that Auto Trunk Call Back doesn't work during conference calls and call transfers.

CHAPTER 5. Call Control Services

This chapter tells you about the Call Control Services. The bottom half of the menu screen is called the Call Control View. The Call Control View is used to access call control related services.

in Details

The call view has buttons for various call control functions and a call list to display the calls at the station.

Call List

Header	Purpose	
For external calls, shows the caller id, if available; and it shows the truNumbernumber and the DNIS (Dialed Number Identification Services), alsoavailable. For internal calls, shows the station number.		
Name	Shows the name of the connected party.	
Status	Shows the status : incoming call, On Hold, On Hold pending transfer, On Hold pending Conference etc.	
Duration	Shows the connected duration of the call	
Details Shows whether the call is a Recall, Call Back, etc.		

Call Control Buttons

Buttons	Purpose
(To make a call
2	To answer a call or unhold a call
2	To release an active call
6	To hold an active call
6	To transfer an active call

Buttons	Purpose
2	To conference
(5)	To Toggle between calls (Consultation Transfer Case Only)
6	To Redial the last number
6	To Continuously dial the last number

Call Control Menu

Options	Purpose
Dial	To make an Outgoing call or to dial on the current call
Answer	To answer an incoming call or retrieve a holding call
Release	To release an active call
Redial	To redial the last dialed number
Hold	To hold an active call
Transfer	To transfer a call to another station
Conference	To conference
Make New External Call	To make a new outgoing external call
Continuous Dialing	To continuously dial the last dialed number
Redirect	To redirect the incoming call to another station
Park	To park the trunk call at another station
Pick Up	To pick up a call from another station/group
Toggle	To toggle between two calls
Page	To page a zone
Send DTMF	To send DTMF Tones
Call Back	To set the busy/no answer station to call back
Leave Message	To leave a message for a busy station or a station which does not answer
Camp On	To indicate to a busy station that your call is waiting
OHVA	To intrude into a busy station
My Voice Mail	To open your voice mailbox
Leave Voice Message	To leave a voice message to other stations
Transfer to Voice Mail	To transfer a connected call to an extensions voice mail box
Call Recording with Voice Mail	To record a connected call with your voice mail device

How Do You Make a Call?

a. How Do You Make a Call from the Call Control Menu?

Click on the Dial option, and the Dial dialog box will appear.



Click on the numbers in the dial pad and click on the Dial button to make a call. You can click on the pull-down menu to select and dial any of the last 10 numbers that you have dialed previously.

b. How Do You Make a Call Using Hot Key?

You can press the F2 function key to get the Dial dialog box to make a call.

c. How Do You Make a Call Using the Dial Button?

Click on the Dial icon to get the Dial dialog box to make a call.



d. Other Ways of Making a Call

How Do You Make a Call using Drag and Drop?

Select the contact to which you want to make a call in the Detailed List View, when using Directory Services. Drag and drop the contact into the Call Control View to make the call. Office phone number is set as a default. If you drag from the home, mobile or the pager column, the respective phone numbers will be dialed.

How Do You Make a Call by Double Clicking?

Double click on any telephone number field in the Detailed List View to have the number dialed.

How Do You Make a Call from the Contact?

Double click on the name or company field of any contact in the Detailed List View to be dialed. Select the number you want to dial in the telephone number pull down option. Select Dial in the pull down option to dial the selected number.

How Do You Make a Call using the Right Click Menu?

Select the contact that you want to dial in the Detailed List View and click the right mouse button. A pop-up menu will appear. Select the Dial option to dial the contact's office number.

How Do You Answer a Call?

When there is an incoming call, the status of the call is shown in the Call Control View. If there is more than one call in the call list, you can select the call to answer.

Number	Name	Status	Duration
()⇔ 2791114 -> 2001114		Incoming Call	
•			Þ

When an incoming call is received from a station, OfficeServ Call will display the station number and the name of the station, if they are set, and will display the type of the call if it is not a direct call. When an external incoming call is received by OfficeServ Call, it displays:

• The trunk number, if the caller id is not available.

Number	Name	Status	Duration	Details
()∉ 701		Incoming Ca	ill in the second s	
•				•

• The caller id, if it is available.

Number	Name	Status	Duration	Details
()⇔ 2021	S, Lee 🛛	Incoming Call		
				•

• The caller id and called id (DNIS), if they are available.

Number	Name	Status	Duration	Details
()⇔ 2021	S, Lee	 Incoming Call		
•				• •

a. How Do You Answer a Call from the Call Control Menu?

Click on the Call Control menu and select the Answer option to answer a call.

b. How Do You Answer a Call Using Hot Key?

Press F3 function key to answer a call.

c. How Do You Answer a Call Using the Answer Button?

Click on the Answer button to connect the call. The Call Control View will display the details of the active connected call.



d. Other Ways You Can Answer a Call

How Do You Answer a Call using Double Mouse Click?

Select the incoming call in the call list. Double click on the call to answer.

How Do You Answer a Call Using the Right Click Menu?

If there is more than one call in the call list, select the call to answer and click the right mouse button to get the menu. Choose the Answer option to answer the call.

How Do You Release a Call?

a. How Do You Release an Active Call from the Call Control Menu?

Click on the Call Control menu and select the Release option to disconnect an active call.

b. How Do You Release an Active Call Using Hot Key?

Press F4 function key to disconnect an active call.

c. How Do You Release an Active Call Using the Release Button?

Click on the Release button to disconnect an active call.



How Do You Redial the Last Number Dialed?

You can call the last dialed number again.

a. How Do You Redial the Last Number from the Call Control Menu?

Click on the Call Control menu and select the Redial option from the Call Control menu to dial the last number dialed.

b. How Do You Redial the Last Number Using the Redial Button?

Click on the Redial button to call the last dialed number again.



c. Other Ways to Redial the Last Number

When you dial an external number and the trunk is busy, the Trunk Busy dialog box will be displayed. Click on the Redial button to call the number again.

How Do You Hold/Retrieve a Call?

You can hold your active calls and retrieve them from the call list in the following ways.

a. How Do You Hold/Retrieve a Call from the Call Control Menu?

To hold a call, click on the Hold option in the Call Control menu when there is an active call. The held call will be displayed in the call list.

Number	Name	Status	Duration	Details
(}⊅ 2021	S, Lee	 On Hold	00:00:38	
•				•

You can retrieve this call by selecting the held call in the call list and clicking on the Answer option in the Call Control menu.



When a call is put in hold state, it will go to the Call List and shows that it is ON HOLD. If you do not retrieve this call within the set time, it will come back with the reason as a HOLD RECALL. This is to avoid anyone waiting continuously for you to answer.

b. How Do You Hold/Retrieve a Call Using the Hot Key?

Press F5 function key to hold a call. To retrieve this call, press the F3 function key.

c. How Do You Hold/Retrieve a Call Using the Call Control Button?

Click on the Hold button to send the active call to OnHold state in the call list. To retrieve this call, select the call from the call list and click on the Answer button.



d. Other Ways to Retrieve a Call

Using the Right Mouse Button in the Call List

Click the right mouse button on the held call in the call list and select the Answer option to retrieve the held call.

Using Double Click in the Call List

Double click on the held call in the call list to retrieve a call.

How Do You Transfer a Call?

You can transfer your active calls to other stations.

a. How Do You Transfer a Call from the Call Control Menu?

Click on the Transfer option in the Call Control menu. You will get the Transfer Call dialog box. Enter the number in the pull-down menu to which the call is to be transferred.

ansfer C	all		8
1 .oz	2 авс	• 3 def	Consu Transfer
4 сні	5 лкі	6 мно	Blind
7 PRS	8 τυν	9 wxy	Transfer Cancel
*	0	#	Help

You can also choose the last 10 numbers from the pull-down menu or click on any of the Speed Dial buttons. You can transfer your calls in two ways:

Option	Purpose	
Blind Transfer	Blind Transfer button	
Consu Transfer	Consultation Transfer button	

How Do You Consult and Transfer a Call?

After you enter the number that the call is to be transferred to, click on the Consultation Transfer button. The active call goes into OnHold pending transfer mode, while you consult with the station as to whether the station agrees to take the call. Click on the Release button to transfer the call.

How Do You Blind Transfer a Call?

After you enter the number that the call is to be transferred to, click on the Blind Transfer icon. The active call will get transferred to the station as soon as the transferred party's phone rings. You cannot blind transfer a call to an external number.



Blind Transfer is not supported for external calls. If you choose Blind Transfer for an external call, Consultation Transfer will be performed.



If the Transferred Party does not answer, the call comes back after a few rings with a call reason as a Transfer Recall. This is because the original calling party is waiting for the answer.

b. How Do You Transfer a Call Using the Call Control Button?

Click the Transfer button to transfer a call.



c. How Do You Transfer a Call Using the Hot Key?

Press F6 function key to transfer an active call.

d. Other Ways of Transferring a Call

How Do You Transfer a Call Using Drag and Drop?

Select the contact to which you want to transfer from the Detailed List View. Drag that number by holding the CTRL key and drop into the Call Control View.

How Do You Transfer a Call Using the Right Click Menu?

Click on the selected contact in the Detailed List View and right click to get a pop up menu. Select the Transfer option to transfer a call.

How Do You Conference?

If there is an active call in the Call Control View, you can have another call joining you in a conference in the following ways.



You can have a maximum of five party conferences

a. Conferencing from Call Control Menu

While there is an active connected call, click on the Call Control menu and select the Conference option. A Conference dialog box will appear.

		-	
1 .oz	2 авс	3 DEF	-
4 вні	5 лкі	6 мно	Dial
7 prs	8 тич	9 wxy	Cancel
*	0	#	Help

The Call Control View will change as shown.

Number	Name	Status	Duration	🛛 Deta 🔺
(¢ 2004		Ringing		
(€ : 2021	S, Lee	 On Hold(Conf)	00:00:22	-
Ĩ.				Þ

When the other party answers, click on Call Control menu and select Conference option again. If the other party does not answer, you can release this call and get connected to the original party using the Release menu/button.

If you want to add another party to the conference, click on the Conference option, enter the number and dial. Once you are connected to the party, press the Conference button to include the party into the conference.

The status of the calls in the call list which are already in conference goes into OnHold(Conf) till the party is included in the conference. You can add a maximum of five parties to the conference.

When the other party answers, select Conference option again to add this party to conference. The status in the call list displays conference. If the party does not agree to join in the conference, you can release the party and get back to those already in the conference.

b. How Do You Conference Using Hot Key?

While there is an active call, press F7 function key to conference. The Conference With dialog box will appear. Enter the number of the party to conference with.

c. How Do You Conference Using the Conference Button?

While there is an active call, click on the Conference button to add a party to make a conference, you will get the Conference dialog box. Enter the phone number of the party to be included in the conference.

The connected party will go OnHold pending Conference. After the party agrees to join the conference, press on the Conference button again to include the party in the conference. If the party does not agree to join the conference, press on the Release button in the Call Control View to reconnect to the holding party.



d. Other Ways to Conference

How Do You Conference Using Right Click Menu?

Select the contact with whom you want to conference in the Detailed List View and click the right mouse button. A pop-up will appear. Select the Conference option to add the party into conference.

How Do You Conference Using Drag and Drop?

Select the contact from the Detailed List View and drag the contact to the Call Control View to dial the number. Click the Conference button once you are connected to the party to include the party in the conference.

e. How Do You Drop Parties from Conference?

Select the party to be dropped from Conference. Click the right mouse button and select the Release option to drop the party from Conference.

How Do You Make a New External Call?

To make a new external call on the occupied trunk, click on the Call Control menu and select Make New External Call option. You can dial another external number without dropping the trunk line.

		•	
1 .oz	2 авс	3 DEF	~
4 оні	5 лкі	6 мно	Dial
7 pres	8 тич	9 wxy	Cancel
*	0	#	Help

Enter the phone number (do not include the trunk access code) or select any of the last 10 numbers you have dialed previously to make an external call. You can also Speed Dial to any of the five contacts by clicking on them.

How Do You Dial Continuously to Make a Call?

Select the Continuous Dial option from the Call Control menu to dial continuously to connect to the last number dialed.

Continuous Dial	8
Retry Count : 1 Dialing Duration:	30 sec,
Redial	top

If you want to redial before the time out occurs, click on the Dial button. Once you get connected to an internal party, the continuous dialing automatically stops. If you get connected to an external party, you have to click the Stop button to stop continuous dialing.

You can change the redialing duration in the Set Environment \rightarrow Time Out option from the Options menu. The default redial duration is 30 seconds.

a. Other Ways to Dial Continuously

When you dial an external number and the trunk is busy, the Trunk Busy dialog box will be displayed. Click on the Continuous Dial button to call the number repeatedly until a trunk line is connected.

How Do You Redirect an Incoming Call?

For incoming calls at your station, you have the option of redirecting them to another station. The 'Redirect' option can be selected from Main menu under [Call Control] option. The call can also be redirected from pop up menu in the call view.

Whenever you select this option, you get a Dialog Box to enter the station number where the call will be redirected.



a. How Do You Redirect a Call Using the Right Click Menu?

In the call list, select the call to redirect and click the right mouse button to get the menu. Choose the Redirect option to redirect the call.

How Do You Park an Incoming Call?

After answering a Trunk Call (External Call), it can be PARKED at another station using OfficeServ Call. To PARK a connected trunk call, select [Park] menu item from the [Call Control], then the dial dialog box titled 'Park' appears. Enter the station number to which the trunk call parked.



When this option in the Main menu. is selected, a dialog box appears to enter the station number at which the call will be PARKED.

How Do You Retrieve a System Holding Call?

Click on the Call Control menu and then click on the Pick Up option. The Pick Up Call dialog box will appear.

Enter the trunk number (701, 702, etc) and press the System Hold Retrieve button.



If that particular trunk is being held at some other station, you will be connected to the trunk.

How Do You Pickup a Call?

You can answer a call for any other station, which receives an incoming call, and when the call is not being answered, you can answer that call using the Pick Up option.

a. How Do You Pickup a Call Using the Call Control Menu?

Click on the Call Control menu and then click on the Pickup option. The Pick Up Call dialog box will appear (Figure below). You can pick up a call from any station or from any other group.



- How do you pickup a call from another station? : Dial the extension of the station using the Pick Up Call dialog box, or use the pull-down menu to choose any of the last 10 numbers dialed to pick up a call at a ringing station.
- How do you pickup a call from another group? : Dial the group number using the Pick Up Call dialog box, or use the pull-down menu to choose any of the last 10 group numbers dialed to pick up a call from a ringing station in another group. Press Group Pick Up(Grp P/U) button.

How Do You Toggle Between Calls?

In the case of a Consultation Transfer, if the third party does not agree to speak to the calling party, you can toggle between these two parties.

a. How Do You Toggle Calls from Call Control Menu?

Click on the Toggle option in the Call Control menu only after the Consultation call is connected.

After selecting the Toggle option, the active call goes into OnHold transfer state, and the holding call becomes active in the Call Control View.

Eile		- root - 2001 Directory	all Control) Sta	ation Setup	otion Help
Personal			T 🛃 🖉	66	20
	Name	Company	Office	Home	Mobile
Kiny *	S, Lee	Samsung	2021	2-15883366	15883366
<i>6</i> .					
	Number	/ Name	Status	Duratio	on Detail: 🔺
	(} ⇔ 2005		Connected	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	0.5(c) 10
	₿¢ 2004		On Transfe	r Hold 00:00:	5/

b. How Do You Toggle Calls from Call Control View?

Click on the Toggle button in the Call Control View to toggle between calls.



How Do You Page to a Zone?

Click on the Page option in the Call Control menu, or the Page button in Call Control View to get the Page dialog box. You can page to the zones you have selected from the pull-down menu. You can page to all individual zones, all external zones, or all internal zones.

Page		i. 🛞	
Plea	ase Lift the Handset before Paging		
	All Internal Zones	External Zone 1	
	Internal Zone 1	External Zone 2	
	Internal Zone 2	External Zone 3	
	Internal Zone 3	External Zone 4	
	Internal Zone 4	All External Zones	
	All Zones		
	Cancel Help		



You have to lift the handset of your Keyset before you select the above option.

How do you send DTMF (Dual Tone Multi Frequency) Tones?

When a call is connected, you can send DTMF tones using the menu option Call Control/Send DTMF. The following dialog box will appear.

Send DTMF
1.02 2 ABC 3 DEF
4 GHI 5 JKL 6 MNO
7 PRS 8 TUV 9 WXY
* 0 #
Close Help



DTMF tones are sent immediately when you click the buttons on the dialog box.

How Do You Call Back a Station?

If you dial a station which is busy or does not answer, you can ask that station to call you back. The called station rings back to the caller once the station becomes idle.

a. How Do You Call Back from the Call Control Button?

Select the Call Back option in the Call Control menu.

b. How Do You Call Back a Station Using Hot Key?

Press F10 function key to request the other station to call you back.

c. Other Ways to Call Back a Station

If you call a station which is busy, you can request the station to call back by choosing the Call Back button in the Station Busy dialog box.

How Do You Leave Message for Another Station?

If you dial a station which is busy, or does not answer, you can leave a message for this party.

a. How Do You Leave a Message from the Call Control Menu?

If you want to leave a message on a station, select the Leave Message option in the Call Control menu. This message will be shown in the Message List dialog box of the called station.

b. Other Ways to Leave a Message

If you call on a station which is busy, you can leave a message for the station by choosing the Leave Message button in the Station Busy dialog box.

How Do You Camp On to Another Station?

If you dial a station which is busy, you can notify the station that your call is waiting.

a. How Do You Camp On from the Call Control Menu?

Select the Camp On option from the Call Control menu. The camped-on station receives a tone indication that your call is waiting. The other station can either ignore your call or put its active call on hold and answer your camped on call.

b. Other Ways to Camp On

If you call on a station which is busy, you can notify the station that your call is waiting by choosing the Camp On button in the Station Busy dialog box. You can also press F9 to camp on if the called station is not answering.

How Do You Make an OHVA (Off Hook Voice Announce)?

If you have called a busy station and you have a voice announcement to make, select the OHVA option in the Call Control menu. The busy station will receive the Off Hook Voice Announce from you while the station is in conversation.



If the station is set to DND, it will not receive an OHVA call.

How Do You Use Voice Mail Features?



The voice mail related features below:

- My Voice Mail
- Leave Voice Message
- Transfer to Voice Mail
- Call Recording with Voice Mail are available only if the voice mail card has been installed and is running on your switch, and your switch supports "^{iDCS}" features.

a. How Do You Open Your Voice Mailbox?

If you select My Voice Mail option from the Call Control menu, you can open your voice mailbox. If you are using a digital telephone, the speaker will be opened automatically. Otherwise you have to lift your telephone before selecting this option. Once you are connected to your voice mailbox, use your keypad or the Send DTMF feature of the OfficeServ Call.

b. How Do You Leave Your Voice Mailbox?

If you select Leave Voice Message option from the Call Control menu, you can leave a voice message to other stations.



The above dialog box will appear. Enter the extension number that you want to leave a voice message with and click the Dial button.

If you are using a digital telephone, the speaker will be opened automatically. Otherwise you have to lift your telephone before clicking the Dial button. Once you are connected to your voice mailbox, use your keypad or the Send DTMF feature of OfficeServ Call.

c. How Do You Transfer a Call to a Voice Mail?

You can transfer a connected call to a voice mail extension. Select the Transfer to Voice Mail option from the Call Control Menu. Enter the extension number and click the Transfer button.



d. How Do You Record a Call with Voice Mail Device?

You can record a connected call with your voice mail device. If you have a connected call and you want to record it, select the Call Recording with Voice Mail option from the Call Control menu.

Once recording starts, a recording icon will be shown with a call in the call control view, and the Call Recording with Voice Mail option will be checked.



If you want to stop recording, select the checked 'Call Recording with Voice Mail' option. The call icon will be restored, and the menu option will be unchecked.

You can play the recording like any other voice messages. My Voice Mail option from the Call Control menu helps you to connect your voice mailbox.

What Happens When You Dial a Busy Station?

If you call a station that is busy, the Station Busy dialog box will appear, from which you can choose the type of operation you want to perform.



Option Purpose	
Callback	Click on Call button if you want to set a call back on the busy station

Option	Purpose
Leave Msg	Click on the Leave Message button if you want to leave a message for the busy station
Camp On	Click on the Camp on button if you want to notify the busy station about your call is in waiting
	Click on the OHVA button if you want to intrude on the busy station
Schedule	Click on the Schedule button if you want to reschedule this call at some other time
Rang Up	Click on the Hang Up button if you want to release the call

What happens if the Trunk is Busy When You Dial an External Number?

When you dial an external number and the trunk is busy, the Trunk Busy dialog box will be displayed to help you to quickly set the available options, such as call back, redial etc.



Option	Purpose
Callback	Click on Call Back button if you want to set a call back on the trunk or trunk group
Redial	Click on the Redial button if you want to redial the number

Option	Purpose
Cont,Dial	Click on the Continuous Dial button if you want to continuously dial the number
Schedule	Click on the Schedule button if you want to reschedule this call for some other time
Rang Up	Click on the Hang Up button if you want to release the call

What Happens When You Answer the Trunk Call Back Call?

If you have set a call back for a trunk when you dialed an external number from OfficeServ Call, the dial pad will come up, and display the number to be dialed when you answer the trunk call back.

Call Note		۲
Keyword Note		
OK Canc	el Help	

How Do You Enter Call Note and Keyword for a Call?

To make notes that relate to a call, select the call and click the right mouse button and select Call Note option. The Call Note dialog box will be displayed.

Enter the call note and keyword (Identifier), and press OK button to save the call note and the keyword.

The call note will be stored along with the call details in the call log. You can retrieve them later from the call log.

CHAPTER 6. BLF (Busy Lamp Field) View

🐦 On Line - 203 - [Of	ficeServ Call: BLF]			
와 🐏 🎇 🖻 🕏	⊙ Tel No. – O Na	ime C Note	Find Panel	Find
*Total Station *Total Trunk *DTDS	201 DCS Line 201	202 DCS Line 202	203 DCS Line 203	
*Speed group000 group001	204 DCS Line 204	205 DCS Line 205 -	-> BLF	
group002 group003 Group group005 group005 group007 group007 group008 group009 group010		BLF Pan	el	

The BLF view allows the OfficeServ Call users to easily monitor the status of individual ports.

You can open the BLF View using Open BLF View option from the Option menu. Each rectangle in the BLF Panel is a BLF (Busy Lamp Field). A BLF (Busy Lamp Field) represents a device on your switch.

From the BLF view, you can divide devices into groups and monitor device status and call state by group. Selected call control features, such as transfer, dial, pickup, are also available. You can add a speed dial number as a BLF, but 'Dial' is the only possible function that can be used. Strictly it is not a BLF, but it is treated as a sort of BLF in this user guide.

The panel at the top is the Find Panel. There are tool buttons and a Find button in the Find Panel. The Group Panel on the left of the main window shows the BLF group list. The member BLFs of the selected BLF group are listed in the BLF Panel. You can select the view type of the BLF panel between Card View and List View. The device status or call state icon appears on the top left corner of the BLF.

If you select List View, the status icon, device telephone number, and user name are displayed for each BLF. If you select Card View, station setup information, such as call forward and note, will also be displayed. List View is only available if there are more than 100 devices in a BLF group.

You can add, delete, and modify BLF groups and members.

BLF Group

There are default BLF groups listed below.

Group Name	Description
*Total Station	Total stations of the switch
*Total Trunk	Total trunks of the switch
	All the speed dials registered
* Speed	(station speed dials registered with the OfficeServ Call users call buttons +
	user defined speed dials)

You cannot delete or rename the default groups, and you cannot add or delete the members of the default groups. However, it is possible to modify a name and add a note to the member BLFs of the default groups.



The BLF name has nothing to do with the station name of the Keyset.

An exception is that you can add user defined station speed dials into the *Speed group. BLFs added in this way are distinguished from the system speed dials by a different icon.

User defined BLF groups can be created, and this can be used to reflect an organizational structure for example.

a. New Group

To create a new BLF group, click the right mouse button on the Group Panel and select New Group option from the context menu.

	otal Station 📥
	New Group 📐
е с	Delete
0,0,0,0,0	Rename
ŝ	Refresh
•	

Enter the name of the new BLF group and click OK.

New BLF Group	
Name: group000	
ок	Cancel

The new group is added to the Group Panel, and it is opened in the BLF Panel.

You can create up to 100 BLF groups including default groups. For example, there are four default groups, [*Total Station], [*Total Trunk], [*DT/DS], and [*Speed], so you can create 96 user defined BLF groups.

b. Delete a Group

Select the BLF group to delete from the Group Panel, and click the right mouse button, then select Delete option.

*Total Station *Total Trunk *DTDS *Speed		
test grouj	New Group	
grou) grou	Delete	
grou) grouj	Rename''	
grou grou	Refresh	
group008		

Click OK to delete the selected group.

[OfficeServ Call] BLF		
Are you sure you want to (delete the BLF group "test"?	
Yes	No	

c. Rename a Group

Select the BLF group to rename from the Group Panel. Click the right mouse button, and then select Rename option.

*Total Station *Total Trunk *DTDS *Speed		
test grou	New Group	
grou grou	Delete	
grou grou	Rename 🙀	
ğroι	Refresh	
group008		

Or, click the selected group again.

★Total Station ★Total Trunk	
*DTDS	
*Speed	
group001	
group002	
group003	•

Enter a new group name into the edit box.



You cannot delete or rename the default BLF groups.

d. Refresh Groups

Select a BLF group to refresh, and click the right mouse button, then select Refresh option.

*Total Station *Total Trunk *DTDS *Speed		
groupUUU group001	New Group	
group002 group003	Delete	
group004 group005	Rename	
group006	Refresh 📐	
Then, the selected group members are read from the database and the BLF Panel is refreshed. If you select the Refresh option without selecting any BLF group, the entire BLF group list is refreshed.

e. New Device

To add a device into a BLF group, click right mouse button on the BLF Panel of a user defined BLF group, and select the New Device option.



The New Lamp dialog box will appear.

New Lamp			×
Number:	201		•
Name:	Operator		
Note:			
	ОК	Cancel	

Select a new device to add from the combo box and edit the name and note if needed. Click OK to add a new device.

f. New Speed Dial

You can add a user defined speed dial into a BLF group. Click right mouse button on the BLF Panel, and select New Speed Dial option. The New Lamp dialog box will appear.

New Lamp	×
Number:	92633505
Name:	Home
Note:	
	I
	OK Cancel

You can enter a new speed dial number into the combo box, or select an existing speed dial number from the combo box. Click OK to finish adding.



If the speed dial number is an external telephone number, be sure to put the outside line access code. The picture above, first '9' is the outside line access code.

g. Add BLFs Using Drag and Drop

You can add a set of BLFs at a time by dragging BLFs from the BLF Panel and dropping them into the target group entry in the Group Panel. This feature is available with the List View only. Change your view option to the List View. Select the BLFs to add another BLF group.

*Total Station *Total Trunk +D TDS *Speed group000 group002 group002 group003 group004	[201] Operator [202] DCS Line 202 [203] DCS Line 203 [204] DCS Line 204 [205] DCS Line 205 [206] DCS Line 206 [207] DCS Line 207	(208) DCS Line 208 (209) DCS Line 209 (210) DCS Line 210 (211) DCS Line 211 (212) DCS Line 212 (213) DCS Line 213 (214) DCS Line 214
group004 group005 group006	(207) DCS Line 207	[214] DCS Line 214

Drag the BLFs and drop on the BLF group to add the selected BLFs. The drop target BLF group is opened in the BLF Panel after the drop.

*Total Station *Total Trunk *DTDS *Speed group001 group002 group003 group004 group005	[201] Operator [202] DCS Line 202 [204] DCS Line 204 [206] DCS Line 206 💑 [92633505] Home	
group005		

h. Delete BLFs

You can delete BLFs from the user defined BLF groups. Select BLFs to delete, and click right mouse button, then select Delete Lamp option.

	201] Operator		
[202] DC [204] DC [206] DC	Dial Pick Up		
i9263350 🧩	New Device New Speed Dial Edit Lamp Delete Lamp		
	Card View		
	Arrange Lamps By 🔸 Refresh		

Click Yes to confirm deletion.





You can delete BLFs only from the user defined BLF groups. Exceptionally, you can delete user defined speed dial BLFs from the *Speed group.

The BLF is deleted only from the currently selected group and the deletion does not affect any other groups.

BLF

Each BLF has information shown below.



a. Edit a BLF

To edit name of a BLF or put a note on a BLF, click right mouse button on the BLF to edit and select Edit Lamp option.

210	Dial
DCS I	Pick Up
21-	New Device
DCS I	New Speed Dial
21)	Edit Lamp
DCS I	Delete Lamp
22: DCS I	List View
351	Arrange Lamps By 🔸
DCS 1	Refresh

When an Edit Lamp dialog appears, edit Name or Note and click OK.

210		×
Number:	210	Y
Name:	Lee, Sanghee	
Note:	[12 ~ 18 October.] Geneva, ITU Telecom World	
	OK Cancel	

b. List View/Card View

You can choose either List View or Card View to decide how the BLF is shown. Click right mouse button on the BLF Panel, then you can select the view option from the context menu.

If it is in List View at the moment, Card View option is visible. Otherwise List View option is visible.

c. Arrange BLFs

You can arrange BLFs by extension number or by name. Click right mouse button on the BLF Panel, then you can choose Number or Name from the sub-menu of 'Arrange Lamps By'.

Dial Pick Up	
New Device New Speed Dial Edit Lamp Delete Lamp	
List View	
Arrange Lamps By 💦 Refresh	 Number Name

The current option appears as checked.

d. Refresh BLFs

If you want to refresh the status of a BLF, select the BLF, click right mouse button, and select Refresh option. The selected BLF's device status (station setup information and call state) is refreshed.

If you select Refresh option without selecting any BLF, all the BLFs of current BLF group are refreshed.

When you are trying to refresh the whole group, this warning message comes up.

[OfficeServ Call] BLF	×
The call states have been refreshed. Do you want to refresh the station setup information - eg. DND - also? It may take quite long time depending on the number of devices, the performance of your switch, and the performance of y PC.	'our
Yes No	

It may take seconds per line to read station setup information, depending on performance and load of your switch. Therefore, it may take quite long time to refresh all the devices of a group.

If you only want to refresh call state, click No. Otherwise, click Yes.

e. Resize BLFs

You can resize BLFs if the display is in Card View. Move the mouse pointer to the bottom right corner of the top left BLF; then the mouse pointer changes to a resize arrow.



Drag the resize arrow. The new size will also be applied to the other BLF groups.

f. Status Icons

BLF Type	lcon	Device Status	Call State
Device		Normal	Idle
	(\$		Dialtone
	(\$		Ringback
	(¢		Ringing
	1		Connected

BLF Type	lcon	Device Status	Call State	
	(fti		Conferenced	
	()		OnHold	
	(\$\$		Disconnected	
	(o	DND	N/A	
	B	Locked	N/A	
	8	Out of Service	N/A	
	2	Unknown	Unknown	
Speed Diel		Station Speed Dial		
Speed Dial	*	User Defined Speed Dial		

Call Control

a. Drag and Drop

You can perform a blind transfer on a connected call by dragging it from the Call Control View and dropping it into an idle BLF. If you drag and drop a connected call with the CTRL key pressed, a consultation transfer is established.

b. Dial

Double click the idle BLF or Speed Dial BLF to dial its telephone number. Or, select a BLF, click right mouse button, and select Dial option from the context menu.

c. Pickup

When there is a call ringing, double click the BLF to pickup the call. Or, select the BLF, click right mouse button, and select the Pickup option.

Tool Buttons

	Button	Description
80	Station Password	Enter the station password.
*** ***	Refresh DT/DS ^{OfficeServ}	Get the DT/DS information from the switch and refresh DT/DS BLF group.
sta	Refresh Station Speed Dials ^{OfficeServ}	Get the Station Speed Dial information from the switch and refresh Station Speed Dials.
	Option	Set options of the BLF View.

Button		Description
R	Refresh Call State	Refresh the Call states of the BLFs of the current
<u>••</u>	Reliesh Call State	group.

Options

If you click the option button, this Option dialog appears.



a. Enable DT/DS BLF Group OfficeServ

If you want to download DT/DS configurations of your Keyset, and create it as a BLF group, mark this option.

b. Load DT/DS Configuration from BLF Database

Once you download the DT/DS configurations from the switch, the OfficeServ Call stores this information in the BLF database. If you don't change the DT/DS configuration frequently, it can save the loading time to load the DT/DS configuration from the BLF database when launching the BLF View.

Mark this option to use the stored DT/DS configurations. Otherwise, OfficeServ Call requests DT/DS configurations every time it launches its BLF View.

c. Request Station Setup Information on Launching

If you want to know the station setup information, that is DND, Call Forward, Station Programmed Message and etc, of all devices when launching BLF View, mark this option. Note that it takes time.

If you don't mark this option, the BLF View reflects the changes after it starts. You can get the station setup information using Refresh option any time while the BLF is open.

Find BLF

You can find a BLF by the telephone number, the name, or the note. Select the finding option, enter the keyword, and click Find button. The matched BLF will be highlighted.

🍲 On Line – 203 – [OfficeServ Call: BLF]					
🗫 🐏 📴 🙆 O Tel No. 💿 Name O Note Sanghee 🕅 🕅					
★Total Station ★Total Trunk ★DTDS	201 Operator	202 DCS Line 202	203 DCS Line 203	204 DCS Line 204	-
+Speed group000 group001	205 DCS Line 205	206 DCS Line 206	207 DCS Line 207	208 DCS Line 208	
group002 group003 group004 group005	209 DCS Line 209	210 Lee, Sanghee	211 DCS Line 211	212 DCS Line 212	
group005	213	214	215	216	-

CHAPTER 7. Directory Services

This section explains the Directory Services provided in the OfficeServ Call application. Directory Services is maintained in a local database and, optionally, a network database.

In both of these, you have a Business phone book, an Others phone book and a Personal phone book. These are default phone books. The Personal phone book is listed by default in the Detailed List View when Directory Services is accessed.

Under the local database, you also have a FindResults phone book that holds the result of the last 'Find' operation.

The table below explains the various menus and options associated with Directory Services.

Directory Services

Menu	Options	Description				
File	Print	Prints the selected phone book				
	Fields to Print	Sets up the printing parameters for a page				
	Enable Message	Login to the OfficeServ Link for send/receive messages.				
	Send Message	Opens Send Message window to send a message to other OfficeServ Call users.				
	New Contact	Adds a new of	contact to a phone book			
	Edit Contact	Modifies the selected contact in a phone book				
Edit	Delete Contact	Deletes the selected contact from a phone book				
	Delete All Contacts	Deletes all the contacts from the selected phone book				
	New Book	Adds a phone book				
	Delete Book	Deletes a phone book				
	Rename Book	Renames the existing phone book				
Directory		Accesses a r	network phone book			
	Network	Connect	Connects to the network phone book			
	Phonebook	Disconnect	Disconnects from the network phone book			
	Search	Searches the given string in the phone book database				

If you click the right mouse button in the Selection View, you will get the following menu items.

Selection View Menus

Service	ltem	Purpose	
	New Book	Adds a new book	
Local Directory	Delete Book	Deletes a new book	
	Rename Book	Renames the existing phone book	
Notwork Directory	Connect	Connects to a network phone book	
Network Directory	Disconnect	Disconnects from a network phone book	

If you click the right mouse button in the Detailed List View, you will get the following menu items.

Detailed List View Menus

ltem	Purpose	
New Contact	Adds a new contact to a phone book	
Edit Contact	Modifies the selected contact in a phone book	
Print Contact	Prints the selected contact using the print options you selected	
Delete Contact	Deletes the selected contact from a phone book	
Delete All	Deletes all the contacts from the selected phone book	
Сору	Copy selected contacts into the clipboard.	
Paste	Paste copied contacts into the current phonebook table.	
Import Smart Control Phonebook	Import a Smart Control Network 4.1 phonebook.	
Dial	Dials the office phone number of the contact	
Schedule Call	Schedules a call to office phone number of the contact	
Transfer	Transfers a call to office phone number of the contact	
Conference	Adds contact to conference at office phone number	

Drag and Drop

Item	Purpose
Drag and Drop a contact from Detailed List View to Call Control View	Dials the contact at office number if there is no active call. Adds this contact to the conference if
	there is an active call

ltem	Purpose
Drag and Drop a contact from Detailed List View to	Transfers the active call to this contact
Call Control View (by pressing the CTRL key)	

What is a Phone Book?

A group of contacts is called a phone book. A phone book can have any number of contacts. You can create your own phone books, and delete them.

What are the Default Phone Books?

The default phone books will always be there in the system. The default phone books cannot be deleted. They are Business, Others, Personal and Find Results.

What is a Network Phone Book?

A phone book which is not local to your system and exists on the network is the network phone book.

What is a Contact?

Each entry of a phone book is termed as a contact. A contact has a Name, Company, Office Phone No., Extension, Home No., Mobile Phone No., etc. You can create as many contacts as you wish. You can also edit and delete these contacts.

How Do You Add a New Phone Book?

a. How Do You Add a New Phone Book from the Directory Menu?

In the Selection View select Local or Network phonebook, click on the Directory menu, and choose New Book option to create a new book. Enter the new phone book name in the new phone book dialog box.

New Phone Book		6
Enter a new p	hone book name,	
ОК	Cancel	



b. Other Ways to Add a New Phone Book

You can also click the right mouse button on the directory button in the Selection View and click on the New Book option.



How Do You Delete a Phone Book?

a. How Do You Add Delete a Phone Book from the Directory Menu?

Select the Delete Book option from the directory menu.

Select the phone book you want to delete and click the OK Button. It will ask for confirmation:



Click on Yes, if you are sure, otherwise click No.



The default phone books and Search Results phone book cannot be deleted. If you are trying to delete a phone book in the Network, you need to have the access permission to delete it.

If you are in the Tree View, and the phone book is deleted successfully, the phone book folder is removed. If you are in the Icon View, the phone book icon will be removed.

b. Other Ways to Delete a Phone Book

You can also click the right mouse button in the Selection View, and then click on Delete Book option to delete a phone book.

How Do You Rename a Phone Book?

Delete Phone Bo	k y	
Sele	a phone book to delete.	
	DK Cancel	

a. How Do You Add - Delete a Phone Book from the Directory Menu?

Select the Rename Book option from the directory menu.

b. Other Ways to Rename a Phone Book

You can also click the right mouse button in the Selection View, and then click on Rename Book option to rename a phone book.

How Do You Add a Network Phone Book?

a. How Do You Add a Network Phone Book from the Directory Menu?

Click on Network PhoneBook option in the Directory menu, and then choose Connect option.



You will get a pop-up Open dialog box where you can select the network phone book you would like to access. If you are already connected to an OfficeServ Call network phone book, you have to disconnect it to connect to another network phone book. Only one network phone book at a time is allowed.



If you have connected to a network phone book while closing the application, the next time you start your application, the network phone book connection will be restored.

Network PhoneBook folders are added in Tree View. In Icon View, the Network button is enabled.

b. Other Ways to Add a Network Phone Book

When you are in Directory Services, you can also choose the Connect option by clicking the right mouse button on the Network button in Selection View to connect to a network phonebook.



How Do You Remove a Network Phone Book?

a. How Do You Remove a Network Phone Book from the Directory Menu?

Click on Network PhoneBook in the Directory menu, then choose the Disconnect option. The network phone book will be disconnected.

b. Other Ways to Remove a Network Phone Book

You can also choose the Disconnect option by clicking the right mouse button on Network Button in Selection View.

How Do You Add a New Contact to a Phone Book?

a. How Do You Add a New Contact Using the Edit Menu?

Click the New Contact option in the Edit menu to add a new contact to the phone book, which is selected in Selection View.

On clicking this option, the Add Record dialog box will appear into which relevant information is to be entered.

				Add Record
Choose Picture	Who Co. Dept Title	Office 1 82 Email 1 Office Addr,	31	V V
Memo				
	Ā	dd Next	OK	Cancel

Enter the data for the fields Name, Company Name, Job Title etc. For example, in the Job Title field, you have a pull-down menu containing job titles; you can select the job title from the menu or enter your own job title.



A contact Name or Company Name must be entered.

The Note button is used to launch Notepad with the <yourcompanyname>.txt file, so you can enter any notes for this contact. The file will be stored in the OfficeServ Call\ContactNotes folder. Because it uses the name and company name you entered as the file name, be precise in what text you enter in these fields.

To insert a bitmap image (picture) of the contact, click the picture frame of the dialog box and select the bitmap file.

If you want to share the phone book as a network phone book, be sure to share the picture folder and select the picture through the shared folder. This saves the filename path in the UNC name. Then other networked users can see the picture.

If you click the button next to phone number edit box, pull-down menus are provided to enter different Office/Home phone numbers.

The email field and the address field can also have multiple entries.

The phone number field starts with Country code-Area code. OfficeServ Call picks up the country code and area code from the Telephony dialing properties of your system.



WARNING

OfficeServ Call does not accept '-' within a phone number.

Click the OK button to add a contact or the Cancel button if you decide not to add this contact. If you wish to add another contact, click the Add Next button.

The entered contact gets added to the database file, and a blank Add Record dialog box appears with the Personal Info tab selected.



The Office No 1 and the Home No 1. entry will appear in the respective fields in the Detailed List View by default. If you want to change the fields displayed click the left mouse button on the column header, then select the field to display from the popup menu.

How Do You Edit a Contact?

a. How Do You Edit a Contact Using Edit Menu?

Select the phone book contact in the Detailed List View and click on the Edit Contact option. An Update Record dialog box will appear where you can modify the entries for the desired contact.



Click on the Prev or Next button to edit the previous or next record in the selected phone book. If you click on Prev or Next button after modifying a contact, those modifications will be saved automatically.

b. Other Ways to Edit a Contact

You can also edit an existing contact by:

- Clicking the right mouse button after selecting the phone book contact in the Detailed List View and then clicking on Edit Contact option.
- Double clicking on the selected contact in the Detailed List View.



The Edit option is enabled in the Detailed List View only when a contact has been selected.

How Do You Delete Contacts?

a. How Do You Delete Contacts from Edit Menu?

Select the phone book contacts in the Detailed List View and click the Delete Contact option in the Edit menu to delete selected contacts from the phone book.

b. Other Ways to Delete Contacts

You can also delete a selected phone book contact from the Detailed List View by clicking the right mouse button and then selecting the Delete Contact option.

How Do You Delete All Contacts?

a. How Do You Delete All Contacts from Edit Menu?

You can delete all contacts in a selected phone book by clicking the Delete All Contacts option in the Edit menu.

b. Other Ways to Delete All Contacts

You can also delete all records in the selected phone book from the Detailed List View by clicking the right mouse button and then clicking on the Delete All option. Then, it will ask for confirmation.

Click on Yes, if you are sure, otherwise click on No.

How Do You Search for a Particular Contact?

You can search for a contact in the Local and Network phone book databases. The search results appear in the FindResults phone book. Any changes you make to the search results will be reflected in the original phone book database containing the contact.

Select the Search option in the Directory menu, and enter the text you want to search for in the Find Text in Phone Book dialog box. Click OK. The contacts which match the text entered will be added to the FindResults phone book. Any contacts previously in the FindResults phone book will be deleted.

Find Text in Phone	e Book		۲
Find Where:	Name	•	
Find What:	Lee		
ОК	Cancel	Help	5

a. Find Results After Using the Search Option

Click the right mouse button on the selected contact in the Detailed List View. A pop up menu will appear with which you can perform various operations on the searched results.

		· root - 2001 Directory	Control	etup) Option	Help
FindResu	itts	C	5223	564	66
1	Name	Company			ocation
	S, Lee	Samsung	<u>New Contact</u> Edit Contact <u>Print Contact</u> <u>H</u> ide Contact Hide A <u>I</u> I		Perso
	Number	Name	Copy Paste	Duration	Details
C.	•	Fwd None	Dia <u>l</u> Schedule call Iransfer Conference	k Msg Li	st Auto Ans

You can do the following:

- Click on Edit Contact option to get details of the contact in the Update Record dialog box. With this you can update the contacts in the FindResults phone book. The changes made here will be reflected in the original phone book.
- Click on Hide Contact option and the selected contact(s) will be hidden. The contact(s) will be deleted only from the FindResult phone book.
- Click on Hide All option and all the contacts will be hidden. The contacts will be deleted only from the FindResults phone book.
- Click on Dial option and it will dial the number of the selected contact. The number will be selected based on the current cursor position.
- Click on Schedule Call option. An Add Schedule dialog box will appear where you can schedule a call. The number will be selected based on the current cursor position.
- If there is a connected call, you can click on the Transfer option, and transfer the call to the number of the selected contact. The number will be selected based on the current cursor position.
- If there is an active call in the Call Control View, click on Conference option, so that the number of the selected contact will be put into conference. The number will be selected based on the current cursor position.



You can also drag and drop from Office no., Home No., or Mobile to make a call. By default, the office phone number is dialed.

The system also supports Drag and Drop for dialing, transferring a call and conferencing.

b. Change in File Menu After Searching

The File menu supports the printing of contacts found after searching.

c. Change in Edit Menu After Searching

The following features will now be available to the Edit menu after selecting any of the searched results:

- Hide Contact option will delete the selected contacts from the FindResults phone book.
- Hide All option will delete all the contacts in the FindResults phone book.



If you edit a contact in the FindResults, the modification will be applied to the original contact also.

Directory Services in Detailed List View

🔘 OlliceSe	nv Gaili -	root - 2001			
<u> </u>	Edit [<u>)</u> irectory	Control Station Set	up Option	Help
Personal		9	6225	6	66
	Name	Company	Office Ho	me l	Mobile
	S. Lee	Samsung	<u>N</u> ew Contact <u>E</u> dit Contact Print Contact <u>D</u> elete Contact Delete A <u>l</u> l	156 115	383366
	Number	Name	Copy Paste	uration	Details
	▲	Fwd None	Dia <u>l</u> Schedule call Iransfer Conference	Msg Li	st Auto Ans

This displays the contents of the selected phone book in the Detailed List View. The fields listed are Name, Company, Office Phone, Home Phone and Mobile. If you click on Office or Home column header, a context menu will appear to enable a change to the phone number type shown in the list.

a. How Do You Sort Contacts?

You can sort the list according to Name, Company, or Mobile field in ascending or descending order by clicking on the respective column headers.

When you click on the column header, it will sort in ascending order on that field. If you want to sort it in descending order, click the header again.

b. How Do You Add a Contact?

Click the right mouse button in the Detailed List View and choose New Contact option to add a new contact in your phone book.

c. How Do You Edit a Contact?

Click the right mouse button in the Detailed List View and choose Edit Contact option to modify an existing contact in your phone book.

d. How Do You Delete a Contact?

Click the right mouse button in the Detailed List View and choose Delete Contact option to delete the selected contact from the phone book.

e. How Do You Delete All Contacts from your Phone Book?

Click the right mouse button in the Detailed List View and choose Delete All option to delete all the contacts from the phone book. Once you choose the Delete All option, it will ask for confirmation. Click on Yes, if you are sure, otherwise click No.

f. How Do You Copy/Paste Contacts?

Select contacts to copy and click the right mouse button in the Detailed List View and choose Copy option. Choose the folder to paste the copied contacts. Click the right mouse button on its detailed list view and choose Paste.

g. How Do You Import a Smart Control Phone Book?

If you have a Smart Control Network 4.1 phonebook, you can import it into OfficeServ Call phonebook. Select a phonebook table into which the imported contacts will be saved from My Phonebook, click right mouse button on the Detailed List View, and select Import Smart Control Phonebook option.

A File Open dialog appears. Then select a Smart Control Network 4.1 phonebook. This feature only works with Smart Control Network 4.1 phonebooks.

h. How Do You Dial a Contact?

Select the contact from the phone book in the Detailed List View and click the right mouse button. Choose the Dial option to dial. Dial option dials the number of the selected contact. The number will be selected based on the current cursor position.

i. How Do You Schedule a Call to a Contact?

Select the contact from the phone book in the Detailed List View and click the right mouse button in the Detailed List View. Choose the Schedule Call option to schedule a call to the number of the contact. The number will be selected based on the current cursor position.

j. How Do You Transfer a Call to a Contact?

Select the contact from the phone book in the Detailed List View and click the right mouse button in the Detailed List View. If you have an active connected call in the Call Control View, you can transfer this call to the number of the selected contact by clicking on Transfer option. The number will be selected based on the current cursor position.

k. How Do You Add a Contact to a Conference?

Select the contact from the phone book in the Detailed List View and click the right mouse button in the Detailed List View. This dials the number of the contact. The number will be selected based on the current cursor position.

If you have an active call in the Call Control View, you can include this contact in the ongoing conversation by clicking the Conference option.

How Do You Print Contacts From a Phone Book?



This prints all the contacts in your phone book. You have the option to select one of four different types of formats for printing.

To print the contents of a phone book that you have selected in the Selection View, select contacts to print form the Detailed List View and click on the Print option in the File menu. The listing in the printout depends upon the options you have selected in 'Print Fields...'dialog box. The output will appear like this:

Name : Samsung Lee							
Profession : Software Engineer, Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd.							
Company Contact	mpany Contact :						
Address	: 416, MaeTanDong, Suwon						
First No	: 82-31-279 1114-extn-1114						
Second No	:						
Other No	:						
Direct No	:						
Internal No	: 1114						
Home Contact	:						
Address	: 1Ga, TaePyoungNo, JoongGu, Seoul						
First No	:						
Second No	:						
Farm No	<u>:</u>						

GuestHouse No	:
Other Contact Nos Fax	: : 82-31-279 4289
Mobile	:
Pager	
Email	: sslee@samsung.com

a. How Do You Set Up Fields for Printing?

You can select the individual items of information to be printed by selecting options from the Information To Print dialog box.



Click the Fields to Print option on the File menu. The Information To Print dialog box will appear with five checkbox options. Select the option or options that you want to print out.

For example, if you want a printout of a phone book listing only the professional details, check against the Profession checkbox and deselect the rest of the checkboxes.

If Select All option is checked, all the other options get checked. The figure above shows all the options checked, so in this case you would get a printout of all the details in the phone book that you have selected in the Selection View.

b. How Do You Print a Single Contact?

Click the right mouse button in the Detailed List View after selecting a contact, then choose Print a Contact.

The selected contact will be printed with the options set in Page Setup.

Sending Messages to OfficeServ Call Users

You can send and receive text messages to/from other OfficeServ Call Users. There are 2 Message options in the File menu, Message Enable and Message Login.



a. Enable Message

You have to login to the OfficeServ Link to send/receive messages. If you select the Enable Message option, OfficeServ Call sends a login message to the OfficeServ Link. When the login succeeds, the Enable Message option is checked.



If other OfficeServ Call users send messages to you while you are logged in, the message window is open and the messages are displayed. To avoid receiving messages, select the Enable Message option once again. Then you are logged out, and the Enable Message option will be unchecked.

b. Send Message

If you want to send messages to other OfficeServ Call users, select the Send Message option. Then the Send Message dialog box appears.

Select the destination extensions in combo box of the (1) window, enter the message text in bottom of the (2) window and click Send button. The sent message attached to the lists window.



You can select the destination extensions from the combo box at the top. If you want to send to all the logged-in users, select 'Broadcasting'. To send the same message to multiple extensions, select as many stations as you want. The selected destinations are shown (1) window. You can edit the destination directly. Separate destination extensions from one another by using a semi-colon ';'. The messages sent and received are listed in the window. The latest message is attached at the bottom. If there are more than 1000 messages, the oldest message is deleted.

How Do You Import/Export Excel Files?

A Microsoft Excel Import/Export tool is provided with the OfficeServ Call 5.1. You can import Excel worksheets into the OfficeServ Call phonebook tables. It is also possible to export OfficeServ Call Phonebook tables to Excel worksheets.



Excel Import/Export feature is available only when you have the Microsoft Excel version 7.0 or later installed on your PC.

To start Excel Import/Export, shutdown OfficeServ Call if it is running and select Excel Import/Export from the OfficeServ Call program folder.

If the OfficeServ Call is running, this warning message comes up.



When you launch the Excel Import/Export successfully, this dialog appears.

👜 Excel Import/Export Wizard	×
Start Excel Import/Export Wizard.	
This wizard helps:	
 import excel sheets into a phonebook table of an OfficeServ CTI product 	
export a phonebook table of an OfficeServ CTI product into an Excel file.	
Select a phonebook file:	
Cancel Import Export	

First, click on the browse button in the picture above, and select an OfficeServ Call phonebook file. The OfficeServ Call's phonebook filename is Pbook.mdb in the OfficeServ Call's program folder.

To import an Excel worksheet into the selected phonebook, click Import button. To export selected phonebook to Excel Worksheets, click Export button.

a. How Do You Import Excel Worksheets into Phonebook?

If you click the Import button from the Excel Import/Export Wizard dialog, this telephone number format warning appears.

Excel Imp	oort/Export Wizard
2	Note: The telephone number field in the excel sheet should be in the Samsung OfficeServ Phonebook format. Confirm that the telephone number format before performing import.
	 Internal/Extension: number only Mobile/Pager: All the digits you enter when you dial, number only eg) 01695301114 Other External Numbers: country code-area code excluding 0-local phone number eg) 82-31-2791114
	If the imported telephone numbers do not fit in with these rules, it may cause incorrect search result.
	Does your excel sheet fit in these telephone number rules?
	Yes No

If the telephone numbers in your source Excel file do not fit in this format, click No, modify the Excel file, then try again. If you click Yes, an Excel File Selection dialog box appears.

xcel Sheet Import Wizard
Select an Excel file to import.
D:\Program Files\Samsung Electronics\iDCS Call\net_eng.xls
الإطا
Cancel < Back Next > Finish

Click the browse button, and select an Excel file whose worksheet is to be imported. Click Next, and select a worksheet to import.

Sheet4 Sheet3	She She		SEC			
3EC'Work	sheet Exam		-	-		-
	A	В	C	D	E	F
1	name	company		fax	email	mobil
2	Sanghee	Samsung	Engineer		shhong@	16253
3	Sungsik J	Samsung	Engineer	1-2792309	cdongsik(11714
4	Woonghe	Samsung	Engineer	1-2793109	kschung@	11531
5	Hahong K	Samsung	Manager	1-2792616	csshim@	11212
	Yosoon K			1-7796939	secsyoh(11284
7		Samsung			hyungwoi	
8	John Doe				ohys@sa	
			CTO		hjavlee@	

If you click on the name of a worksheet, you can see first ten rows of the selected worksheet. Click Next, and select the range to import.

Select the range to import. ♥ Whole ● Partial A 1 : I 0 eg) A1:F10 Image: The first row of the selected range is a column header. Image: A B C D E F Image: F	Excel Sheet I	mport Wiza	ard				
 Partial A I K I0 eg) A1:F10 In the first row of the selected range is a column header. A B C D E F 1 name company title fax email mobil 2 Sanghee Samsung Engineer 1-2794609 shhong@ 16253 3 Sungsik J Samsung Engineer 1-279209 cdongsik(11714 4 Woonghei Samsung Engineer 1-279209 cdongsik(11714 4 Woonghei Samsung Engineer 1-2792010 kschung(11531 Hahong K Samsung Manager 1-2792616 csshim@ 11212 Yosoon K Samsung Manager 1-7796939 secsyoh(11284 7 SangDon Samsung Engineer -94183946 hyungwoi 42822 B John Doe Samsung Engineer 1-2793899 ohys@sa 1174 	Select the ra	ange to imp	oort.				
✓ The first row of the selected range is a column header. A B C D E F 1 name company title fax email mobil 2 Sanghee Samsung Engineer 1-2794609 shhong@ 16253 3 Sungsik J Samsung Engineer 1-2792309 cdongsik(11714 4 Woonghei Samsung Engineer 1-2792109 kschung@ 11531 5 Hahong K Samsung Manager 1-2792616 csshim@ 11212 6 Yosoon K Samsung Manager 1-7796939 secsyoh@ 11284 7 SangDon Samsung Engineer -94183946 hyungwoi 42822 8 John Doe Samsung Engineer 1-2793899 ohys@sa 11741	O Who	le					
A B C D E F 1 name company title fax email mobil 2 Sanghee Samsung Engineer 1–2794609 shhong@ 16253 3 Sungsik J Samsung Engineer 1–2792309 cdongsik(11714 4 Woonghei Samsung Engineer 1–2792109 kschung@ 11531 5 Hahong K Samsung Manager 1–2792616 csshim@ 11212 6 Yosoon K Samsung Manager 1–7796939 secsyoh@ 11284 7 SangDon Samsung Engineer -94183946 hyungwoi 42822 8 John Doe Samsung Engineer 1–2793899 ohys@sa 11741	e Parti	al A	1	: 🛛	10	eg) A1:F1	0
1namecompanytitlefaxemailmobil2SangheeSamsungEngineer1-2794609shhong@162533Sungsik JSamsungEngineer1-2792309cdongsik(117144WoongheiSamsungEngineer1-2793109kschung(115315Hahong KSamsungManager1-2792616csshim@112126Yosoon KSamsungManager1-7796939secsyoh(112847SangDonSamsungEngineer-94183946hyungwoi428228John DoeSamsungEngineer1-2793899ohys@sa11741	🔽 The	first row of	the selecte	d range is :	a column h	eader.	
2SangheeSamsungEngineer1-2794609shhong@162533Sungsik JSamsungEngineer1-2792309cdongsik(117144WoongheiSamsungEngineer1-2793109kschung(115315Hahong KSamsungManager1-2792616csshim@112126Yosoon KSamsungManager1-7796939secsyoh(112847SangDonSamsungEngineer-94183946hyungwoi428228John DoeSamsungEngineer1-2793899ohys@sa11741		A	В	С	D	E	F 🔺
3 Sungsik J Samsung Engineer 1–2792309 cdongsik 11714 4 Woonghei Samsung Engineer 1–2793109 kschung@ 11531 5 Hahong K Samsung Manager 1–2792616 csshim@ 11212 6 Yosoon K Samsung Manager 1–7796939 secsyoh@ 11284 7 SangDon Samsung Engineer –94183946 hyungwoi 42822 8 John Doe Samsung Engineer 1–2793899 ohys@sa 11741	1						
4 Woonghei Samsung Engineer 1-2793109 kschung@ 11531 5 Hahong K Samsung Manager 1-2792616 csshim@ 11212 6 Yosoon K Samsung Manager 1-7796939 secsyoh@ 11284 7 SangDon Samsung Engineer -94183946 hyungwoi 42822 8 John Doe Samsung Engineer 1-2793899 ohys@sa 11741	2					~	
5 Hahong K Samsung Manager 1-2792616 csshim@ 11212 6 Yosoon K Samsung Manager 1-7796939 secsyoh(11284 7 SangDon Samsung Engineer -94183946 hyungwoi 42822 8 John Doe Samsung Engineer 1-2793899 ohys@sa 11741	-					-	
6 Yosoon K Samsung Manager 1-7796939 secsyoh(11284 7 SangDon Samsung Engineer -94183946 hyungwoi 42822 8 John Doe Samsung Engineer 1-2793899 ohys@sa 11741							
7 SangDon Samsung Engineer -94183946 hyungwoi 42822 8 John Doe Samsung Engineer 1-2793899 ohys@sa 11741		-	-	-			
8 John Doe Samsung Engineer 1-2793899 ohys@sa 11741	<u> </u>		V	V			
	1	-	-	-			
	-						
		Hay Smitt	LSP	CIU	1-7793899	njaviee@	•
Cancel < Back Next >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>		Cancel	< B	lack	Next ≻	F	inish

If you want to import the whole worksheet, mark the 'Whole' option. Otherwise select 'Partial' worksheet as shown above. If you have column headers in the first row of the selected range, mark 'The first row of the selected range is a column header.'

E	cel Sheet Import Wizard					
	Match the phonebook fields w The name field is a necessity					
	Phonebook Field:	Excel Column:				
	Title	▼ <-> title ▼				
	Phonebook	Excel				
	Name	name				
	Company	company 🚽				
	Department					
	Title	title 🚬				
	1	2 3 4 5 🔺				
	1 name compa					
		sung Engineer 1-2794609 shhong@ 16253				
	3 Sungsik J Samsu					
	4 Woonnbei Samsi					
	Cancel	< Back Next > 💦 Finish				

Click Next, and map the phonebook table fields with the Excel worksheet columns.

Select a phonebook field from the left combo box, and select a corresponding Excel column from the right combo box, then click the map button in the middle. You can see the mapping result in the list box right below the combo boxes. Click Next, and select the destination phonebook table.

E	xcel Sheet I	mport Wiza	ard					
	You can import the excel sheet into a new or existing phonebook table. Select a phonebook table to save the imported data.							
	New Table Sample							
	O Exis	ting Table						~
		1		2	3	4	5	
	1	name	com	ipany	title	fax	email	mobil
	2	Sanghee	Sam	isung	Engineer	1-2794609	shhong@	16253
	3	Sungsik J	Sam	isung	Engineer		cdongsik(
	4	Woonghei	Sam	isung	Engineer	1-2793109	kschung@	11531
	5	Hahong K	Sam	isung			csshim@	
	6	Yosoon K	Sam	isung	Manager	1-7796939	secsyoh(11284
	7				Engineer		hyungwoi	
	8	John Doe	Sam	Isuna	Engineer	1-2793899	ohvs@sa	11741
		Cancel		< 8	lack	Next ≻	F	inish

You can import the selected worksheet into either a new phonebook or an existing phonebook. If you select New Table, enter the name of a new table. Otherwise, select an existing table from the combo box.

Click Next, and confirm your selection.

Excel Sheet Import Wizard
Now it is ready to import the selected Excel sheet.
SEC
worksheet will be imported into
Sample
phone book table.
Cancel < Back Next > Finish ⊾

Click 'Finish', to complete importing.

If the import succeeds, this message is shown.



b. How Do You Export Phonebook Tables from Excel Worksheets?

To export OfficeServ Call phonebook tables to Excel worksheets, click the Export button from the Excel Import/Export Wizard dialog.

Export to Excel Wizard			×
Select a phonebook table to	export.		
Table Name: Sample			Ķ
Cancel	< Back	Next >	Finish

A phonebook table dialog box appears.

Select a table to export. To export all the phonebook tables, select All. Click Next, and select a destination Excel file.

Export to Excel Wizard	×
Select an Excel file to export the selected phonebook table.	
New Browse	
D:\Program Files\Samsung Electronics\iDCS Call\net_export.xls	_
Cancel < Back Next > > Finish	

If you want to create a new Excel file, click New button. You can select an existing Excel file by clicking the Browse button. Click Next, and confirm your selection.

Export to Excel Wizard	×
Now it is ready to export the selected phone book table into the Excel file.	
Sample phone book table will be exported to	
D:\Program Files\Samsung Electronics\iDCS Call\net_export.xls	
Cancel < Back Next > Finish	¢]

Click 'Finish' to complete exporting. If the export succeeds, this message will be shown.

Excel Import/Export Wizard 🛛 🗙		
i)	"Excel Export" succeed	led.
	ОК	

CHAPTER 8. Drag and Drop Services

You can click the mouse button on a contact in the Detailed List View and drag it across Selection View or Call Control View to perform various functions such as dialing, transferring a call and conferencing. This operation is called Drag and Drop.

From version 5.1, you can drag a connected call from the Call Control View and drop it into a BLF of the BLF View and drag BLFs from one group to another.

Item	Purpose
Dragging to the Call Control View	If there is no connected call, it dials. If there is a connected call, a conference is established with this contact
CTRL+Drag to Call Control View	Transfers the connected call to this contact
Dragging Home number to Call Control View	Dials the home number
Dragging Mobile number to Call Control View	Dials the mobile number
Dragging a connected call in the Call Control View to BLF View	Transfer the connected call
Dragging BLFs from one BLF group to another	Add dragged BLFs to the target BLF group.

Drag and Drop-How Do You Dial?

Select the phone book contact in the Detailed List View. Drag and drop into the Call Control View to dial a phone number. The cursor will show Dial.



If you drag from the Name, Company, or Office Phone and drop in the Call Control View, the office phone number is dialed by default. If you drag from the Home Phone column and drop into the Call Control View, the home phone number will be dialed. If you drag from the Mobile Phone column and drop into the Call Control View, the Mobile Phone number will be dialed.

Drag and Drop-How Do You Transfer a Call?

When there is an active call, press the CTRL key and drag the contact from the phone book in the Detailed List View, and drop into the Call Control View to transfer the call to the selected contact. The cursor will show TRSF.

|--|

Drag and Drop-How Do You Conference a Call?

When there is an active call, drag the contact from the phone book in the Detailed List View, and drop into the Call Control View to add the contact to conference. The cursor will show Conf.



Drag and Drop-How Do You Transfer a Call to a BLF?

You can perform a blind transfer for a connected call by dragging it from the Call Control View and drop it into an idle BLF. The cursor will show B'Xfr.



If you drag and drop a connected call with the CTRL key pressed, a consultation transfer is established. The cursor will show C'Xfr.

Drag and Drop-How Do You Add BLFs?

You can add a set of BLFs one at a time by dragging BLFs from the BLF Panel and dropping them into the target group entry in the Group Panel. This feature is available with the List View only. Change your view option to the List View. Select the BLFs to add to another BLF group and them onto the group Panel. The cursor will show like this.


CHAPTER 9. Scheduler Services

This chapter tells you about the Scheduler Services provided in OfficeServ Call. You can schedule outgoing calls, set/reset different types of call forwarding, set/reset DND (Do Not Disturb) and set/reset station lock.

What is a Schedule?

It is a service, which is triggered at a set date and time. When you click on Scheduler Service in the Selection View, it displays the schedule function selection menu.



You can view different Schedule functions in the Detailed List View by selecting them in Selection View. For example, when Outgoing Call is selected in Selection View, you can view the scheduled outgoing calls only in Detailed List View.

The Detailed List View displays the scheduled function, details, frequency of the scheduled function, and the time during which the scheduled function is active.

Frequency	Time	State
Weekly	Every Mon 8:00 PM T	Res
Once	From7/23/2002 8:12 P	Sch
Daily	From8:12 PM To 8:14	Sch
Once	From7/22/2002 8:13 P	Sch
	Weekly Once Daily	Weekly Every Mon 8:00 PM T Once From7/23/2002 8:12 P Daily From8:12 PM To 8:14

Schedule Fields	Description		
Function	Shows the function set for a scheduled item such as DND, outgoing call, forwarding, and the details of the scheduled item such as		
	destination number, vacant station message number, etc.		
Frequency	Shows the frequency set for the scheduled item; once, daily, weekly or		
	yearly.		

Schedule Fields	Description	
Time	Shows the time set for the scheduled item	
State	Shows the state of the schedule item such as completed, scheduled, rescheduled, etc.	
Edit Menu Options	Purpose	
New Schedule	Adds a new schedule	
Edit Schedule	Modifies a schedule	
Delete Schedule	Deletes a schedule	
Delete All	Deletes all the selected schedules	

How Do You Add a New Schedule?

a. How Do You Add a New Schedule from Edit Menu?

Click on Edit menu and select New Schedule option. You will see the Add Schedule dialog box.



You can choose one of the items you want to schedule at any time. Depending upon the item selected, different controls will be enabled or disabled.

How Do You Schedule a Do Not Disturb?

If you wish not to be disturbed by incoming calls for a selected time, or on some day: Click on Edit menu and select New Schedule option to get the Add Schedule dialog box.

Add Schedule	
<mark>I R</mark> emind <u>N</u> ote	
To Schedule	<u>C</u> ontact Popup 🧖
Do Not Disturb	Destination
C Call Forward	Type of All Calls 💌
C Out Going Call	Sound <u>F</u> ile
C Station Lock	Browse Play
OK Cancel	Help Freq, »

Click on Do Not Disturb option. You can also enter a comment in the Schedule Note field, if required. Now click on the Frequency tab and enter the Date, Time and Frequency for the DND option to be active.

How Do You Schedule a Call Forward?

If you wish to forward your calls to some other station at a selected time or on a specific day: Click on Edit menu and select New Schedule option to get the Add Schedule dialog box.

Add Schedule		۲
₽ <u>R</u> emind <u>N</u> ote		
To Schedule	<u>C</u> ontact Popup 🥅	
○ Do Not Disturb	D <u>e</u> stination 2021	
	Type of All Calls	-
C Out Going Call	Sound <u>F</u> ile D:₩WINNT₩N	1
C Station Lock	Browse Play	7
OK Cancel	Help Freq. 3	»

Click on Call Forward option. Select the type of calls to be forwarded in the 'Type of' calls pull-down menu. In the Destination field, enter the phone number to which the call is to be forwarded. You can also enter a comment in the Schedule Note field, if required. Now click on the Frequency tab and enter the Date, Time and Frequency for Call Forward to be active.

How Do You Schedule a Call?

If you wish to make a call to some number at a selected time or on a specific day: Click on Edit menu and select New Schedule option to get the Add Schedule dialog box.

Contact Popup 🔽
Destination 2021
Type of All Calls
Sound <u>File</u>
Browse Play
Help Freq. »

Click on Out Going Call option. Enter the phone number in the Destination field. You can enter any comments in the Schedule Note field.

The Schedule Note will be shown as Call Note when the call is made, for example: 'Birthday Greeting'. Now click on the Freq. button and enter the Date, Time and Frequency for Out Going Call to be active.

If a contact pop up window is needed when the outgoing call is being made, select the contact pop up window. It will pop up the property sheet if the contact information is available in the directory database.

Other Ways to Schedule a Call

Select a contact in the Detailed List View. Click the right mouse button on the contact and choose the Schedule option to schedule a call to this contact.

How Do You Schedule the Station Lock?

If you wish to lock your phone at a selected time or on a specific day: Click on Edit menu and select New Schedule option to get the Add Schedule dialog box.

Add Schedule	
☑ Bernind Note To Schedule ○ Do Not Disturb ○ Call Forward ○ Out Going Call	Password **** Sound Eile
© Station Lock	Browse Play Help Freq. »

Click on Station Lock option. Enter the Password. You can also enter a comment in the Schedule Note field, if required.

Now click on the Frequency tab and enter the Date, Time and Frequency for Station Lock to be active.

b. Other Ways to Add a New Schedule

You can add a new schedule in the Detailed List View by clicking the right mouse button and then clicking on New Schedule.

Frequency Option in Scheduler

This is used to set a time, date and frequency for execution of the scheduled item.

Add Schedule			
To Schedule	Contact Popup 🗖		
Do Not Disturb	D <u>e</u> stination		
C Call Forward	Type of All Calls 💌		
C Out Going Call	Sound <u>F</u> ile		
C Station Lock	Browse Play		
OK Cancel	Help Freq, <u>»</u>		
<u>F</u> req Once	D <u>a</u> y Tue		
Erom 2002 07 23 🛨 01 33 p.m 🛨			
<u>I</u> o <u>2002</u> 07 2	3 ÷ 01 35 p.m ÷		

You can choose any one option from the Frequency pull-down menu. Depending on the type of frequency selected, certain fields may be enabled or disabled. These fields can be used to enter the day, date and time.

a. How Do You Schedule an Item Once?

If you select Once option, the scheduled services will be executed only once for the date and time you enter.

b. How Do You Schedule an Item Daily?

If you select Daily option, the scheduled services will be executed every day at the time you enter.

c. How Do You Schedule an Item Weekly?

If you select Weekly option, the scheduled services will be executed weekly on the day of the week and at the time you enter. You can select the day of the week from the Day pull-down menu.

d. How Do You Schedule an Item Yearly?

If you select Yearly option, the scheduled services will be executed yearly on the day of the year and at the time you enter.

Reminder Option in Scheduler

If you wish to be reminded before a scheduled item is activated, check the Reminder option box.

At the scheduled time, a dialog box will pop up to ask for confirmation of continuation of the schedule. If a wave file is configured to be played for the Reminder, it will be played along with it.

If you click on 'No', the scheduled item is not activated. The dialog box will remain for 10 seconds after which it will be assumed that the answer to the confirmation is 'No', and the scheduled item will not be activated.

How Do You Edit a Schedule?

a. How Do You Edit a Schedule from Edit Menu?

If you have any change in plans and you have scheduled a service, you can modify the schedule using the Edit Schedule option from the Edit menu.

b. Other Ways to Edit a Schedule

You can edit a selected schedule in the Detailed List View by clicking the right mouse button and then clicking on Edit Schedule.

How Do You Delete Schedules?

a. How Do You Delete Schedules from Edit Menu?

Select the scheduled items to be deleted from the Detailed List View, and click on Delete Schedule in the Edit menu.

b. Other Ways to Delete a Schedule

You can delete a selected schedule in the Detailed List View by clicking the right mouse button and then clicking on Delete Schedule.

How Do You Delete All Schedules?

If you want to delete all the scheduled items that are currently visible in Detailed List View, click on Delete All option in the Edit menu. An OfficeServ Call dialog box will prompt for confirmation.



Click on Yes if you are sure, otherwise click on No.



WARNING

If you click on Delete All, all the scheduled items which are currently selected in Selection View will get deleted(e.g. if DND folder/icon is selected in Selection View, then all the DND schedules will be deleted).

To sort the schedules in Detail List View, click on the header for that particular column. For example, if you click on Function, it will sort all the scheduled items according to function (DND, Forwarding, etc.). Sorting is available on Function, Frequency, Time and State.

How Do You Refresh States of the Schedules?

If you want to refresh the scheduled items on the list, click the right mouse button on the list. The states of the schedule items are refreshed instantly.

How Do You Sort Schedules?

To sort the Schedules in Detail List View, click on the header for that particular column. For example, if you click on Function, it will sort either in ascending or descending order of the name of the scheduled function, depending on which order they are currently in. Sorting is available on Function, Frequency, Time, and State.

CHAPTER 10. Call Log Services

This chapter describes the Call Log Services provided in OfficeServ Call.

These services maintain the records of all incoming and outgoing calls. You can view the logs by selecting the log type in the Selection View. All contents will be displayed in the Detailed List View in descending date order by default.

Items in Detailed List View	Purpose	
All	To display both incoming and outgoing call details	
Incoming Calls	To display only incoming call details	
Outgoing Calls	To display only outgoing call details	

Fields in the Detailed List View:

Fields in Detailed List View	Purpose		
Name	Displays the name of the caller/called party		
From/To	Displays number of the caller/called party		
Date	Displays the date when the call was made		
Duration	Displays the duration of the call		
Status	Displays the status of the call, such as: RingBack—when you have called a station and the party does not answer Busy—when you have called a busy station Connected—connected call Unanswered—when there was a call to your station and you did not answer		

How Do You View Call Logs?

a. How Do You View All Call Logs?

If you select the 'All' icon in the Selection View, you will get the logs for both incoming and outgoing calls for your station, displayed in the Detailed List View.

b. How Do You View Incoming Call Log?

If you select Incoming Calls in the Selection View, all the incoming call log records will be displayed in the Detailed List View.

c. How Do You View Outgoing Call Log?

If you select Outgoing Calls in the Selection View, all the outgoing call log records will be displayed in the Detailed List View.

How Do You Sort Logs?

To sort the logs in Detail List View, click on the header for that particular column. For example, if you click on Name, it will sort either in ascending or descending order of the name of the caller/called party, depending on which order they are currently in. Sorting is available on Name, Caller ID, Date, Duration, and Status.

How Do You Print Call Logs?

a. How Do You Print Call Logs from File Menu?

Select the Print option from the File menu when you are in the Call Log Services to print all the call logs in the selected format.

b. How Do You Set Up Different Types of Call Log Print Formats?

If you click the Print Setup option from the File menu, the Select Format to Print dialog box appears, from which the format for printing can be selected.

The printout in Detail View will appear as shown below:

Name	: Basheeruddin
Number : 201	
Date :	
Duration	: 00:00:00
Call Note	:
Status	: Ring Back
Name	:
Number	: 203
Date :	
Duration	: 00:00:00
Call Note	:
Status	: Ring Back

How Do You Delete Logs?

Select the Delete Log option from the Edit menu. The selected call log records will be deleted. You can also delete logs by right clicking on selected call logs in the Detailed List View and selecting the Delete Log option.

How Do You Delete All Logs?

Click the Delete All option from the Edit menu. Or, right click on call logs in the Detailed List View and select the Delete All option. All the logs of the selected type will be deleted.



WARNING

If you click on Delete All option, all the selected logs in Selection View will be deleted. For example, if in Selection View, the Incoming Calls folder/icon is selected, then Delete All option will delete all the incoming call log records.

How Do You Save Note of a Call Log?

Select the Save Note option from the Edit menu, or right click on selected call log and select the Save Note option. A File Save dialog box will appear. Specify the file name and store the note in the *.txt file. Then, the call log note of the selected log will be saved.

How Do You Find a Log with given Keyword?

Select the Find option from the Edit menu. A dialog box will appear. Enter the keyword to find and click on OK button.

Find Log	·····	۲
Keyword: orden	Cancel	

If a call log with the given keyword is available, it will be highlighted in the Detailed List View; if not, a message box will appear saying that no log was found with the given keyword.

How Do You Print a Single Log?

Right click on the call log in Detailed List View and select Print Log. The log will be printed in detailed format.

How Do You Edit the Keyword and Call Note?

Right click on the call log in Detailed List View and select Edit Note. An Update Note dialog box will appear with the call log details. Click the button next to 'Note' to get the Note dialog box. Keyword and Memo fields can then be edited. Make your changes and click on OK to save the new details in the call log database.

Update Note			۲
Name From/To Date Duration Status Found at	S. Lee 2021 07/23 10:01 AM 00:03:58 Connected Local.[Personal]		
<u>K</u> eyword <u>M</u> emo	β	Note	<u>«</u>
ОК	Cancel	Арр	y

How Do You Redial from Call Log List View?

Right click on the call log in Detailed List View and select Redial, or double click the telephone number in the From/To field to redial. This will dial the number from the call log list.

The phone number in incoming call logs is in CNTY-AREA-NUMBER format – except internal calls - whereas the phone number in outgoing call logs is formatted as the digits were dialed.

DNIS in the Call Log

The DNIS number is shown as part of the From/To field itself in the call log dialog box. It appears as NUMBER \rightarrow DNIS.

CHAPTER 11. DDE in OfficeServ Call

Dynamic Data Exchange (DDE) is a form of communication (inter-process) that uses shared memory to exchange data between applications.

Applications can use DDE for one-time data transfers and for ongoing exchanges in which the applications send updates to one another as new data becomes available.

Client and Server Interaction: DDE always takes place between a client application (the 'client') and a server application (the 'server'). The client initiates the exchange by establishing a conversation with the server so that transactions can be sent to the server. (A transaction is a request for data or services.)

The server responds to these transactions by providing data or services to the client. A server can have many clients at the same time, and a client can request data from multiple servers.

Also, an application can be both a client and a server. A client terminates a conversation when it no longer needs a server's data or services. For example, a graphics application might contain a bar graph that represents a corporation's half -yearly profits, and the data for the bar graph might be contained in a spreadsheet application.

To obtain the latest profit figures, the graphics application (client) establishes a conversation with the spreadsheet application (server). The graphics application then sends a transaction to the spreadsheet application, requesting the latest profit figures.

OfficeServ Call Application as DDE Client

OfficeServ Call can act as a DDE client to start a conversation with Personal Information Manager (PIM) applications such as GoldMine for Windows, SuperOffice etc. These applications act as DDE servers.

You can Enable DDE in OfficeServ Call by selecting options in Options→DDE....

When DDE is enabled in OfficeServ Call, then for any incoming call a command is sent to your selected PIM application (which acts like a DDE server) to search for the caller's contact record based on the incoming caller ID or DNIS (Dialed Number Identification Services).

You have the option of specifying the search based on call type, such as Internal Call and/or External Call, as well as on Caller ID or DNIS. The dialog box that appears when you select Set Environment \rightarrow DDE... \rightarrow DDE Settings from the Option menu is shown below.

Select the DDE Server	
Enable DDE For Incoming Interna For Incoming E <u>x</u> tern:	Search
DDE Program	<u></u>
Program: None	Test
P <u>a</u> th: None Selected	
SN@TN@CMI C <u>o</u> mman(SN@TN@CMI	
Database File	
Pat <u>h</u> : None	
OK Cancel	Help

In the DDE Program combo box (dropdown list) the following PIM applications are supported:

- GoldMine for Windows,
- SuperOffice4.0,
- Maximizer for Windows.

For these applications, you need only select the PIM application name, the application's EXE file path and the database file to be opened for finding the contact record. The DDE initialization based on the Services Name and Topic Name is handled by OfficeServ Call.

a. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to GOLDMINE

If you have Enabled DDE and selected GOLDMINE as your Personal Information Manager (PIM), then you need to enter proper path of the GOLDMINE EXE (i.e.gm4.EXE). Choose your GOLDMINE CONTACT file containing the contact records. If you are not sure about the path of the EXE, run the entered EXE by pressing the TEST button. When you click O.K button to 'Select the DDE Server' dialog, a dialog requiring for user to enter 'Login & Password' for GOLDMINE appears.

DDE Server Information		8
>> GOLDMINE User Name: Password:		
	Ж	

Enter your username and password, if any. When entered correctly, DDE is initialized.

Guidelines for using GOLDMINE:

If it is a local number nnnnnn, then GOLDMINE stores it in the format(aa)nnn-nnnn where aa denotes area code. For numbers other then local area numbers, you need to enter them continuously without any special character such as-or (etc., for contact popup.

For example: If your contact's phone number is aa-nnnnnn, where aa is the area code, you need to enter it as aannnnnn in GOLDMINE.



Make sure to enter the correct GOLDMINE EXE file as the username and password are passed along with it. If you enter any other EXE file there is a chance of the program crashing.

b. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to SuperOffice

If you have enabled DDE and selected SuperOffice4.0 as your PIM, you need to enter the path for the SUPEROFFICE file, SUPEROF4.EXE. (If you are not sure about the path of the file, run it by pressing the TEST button.) Even if you have not logged on to SuperOffice it still shows the contact pop up.

Guidelines for using SuperOffice4.0:

1. If your contact's local area is the same as yours, you need to enter only the number.

2. SuperOffice doesn't show a popup for numbers having more than eight digits. If you have entered the number in the form aannnnnn, where aa indicates the area code, then you cannot view the popup.

c. OfficeServ Call as DDE Client to Maximizer for Windows

If you have enabled DDE and selected Maximizer for Windows as your PIM, you need to enter the path of the Maximizer EXE file, MAXWIN.EXE. (If you are not sure about the path of the file, run it by pressing the TEST button.) When you click OK on the Select the DDE Server dialog box, DDE is initialized with Maximizer as the DDE server.

Guidelines for using Maximizer for Windows:

If you have entered a username and password to access the database in Maximizer, then Maximizer must be running prior to initialization of DDE.



Maximizer only points to the contact's record. The contact's record is not popped up. It is better to keep the Maximizer application maximized in the background.

Note for All PIMs (GoldMine, SuperOffice, Maximizer)

If you get the following error when you select any of the above PIMs, it means that DDE has not been initialized.



The solution is to run the EXE file for the application you have selected. Go to Options/Set Environment \rightarrow DDE and enter the path of the program file and database file correctly. Then click OK on the dialog box to reinitialize DDE.

Remember, if you simply click OK on the error message box (above), you cannot see a contact popup for incoming calls since DDE is not initialized.



If you close OfficeServ Call with DDE enabled, then when you start OfficeServ Call again, DDE is initialized automatically.

General DDE Support

OfficeServ Call can work with other applications acting as DDE servers. Select the Other option in the DDE Program combo box if you want to select an application other than that already mentioned.

The following steps explain how to use this feature.

• Select the Other option in the DDE Program combo box (dropdown list) on the Select the DDE Server dialog box.



A help dialog box appears (shown below) giving instructions you should follow.



- Run your selected DDE application (server) EXE file.
- Open the file of contacts (if any) in your DDE application (server).
- Enter your selected DDE application's Services Name and Topic Name, and the command which replaces SN@TN@CMD in the Command edit box. Replace the phone digits in the command with 'CLID'. The Figure below shows how the dialog box would appear when Microsoft Access is selected as the other DDE application (server).

Select the DDE Server	
Enable DDE for Incoming Internal Calls External Calls	Search © Using <u>C</u> aller's ID © Using <u>D</u> NIS
DDE Program	-
<u>P</u> rogram: Other P <u>a</u> th: C;₩GOLDMIN	Test IE₩GOLDMINE,EXE
SN@TN@CM Command: MSAcess@S	
Database File	
OK Cancel	Help

Here MSACCESS@System@[OpenForm FORMNAME,,,FORMFIELD="CLID"] is entered instead of SN@TN@CMD.

Where:7

SN-is Services Name(for Access it is MSACCESS).

TN- is Topic Name(for Access it is System).

CMD- is command (for Access it is [OpenForm FORMNAME,,,,FORMFIELD="CLID"]).

FORMNAME-The name of the form in Access.

FORMFIELD-The name of the field in the form that contains the phone digits.

E.g.

MSACCESS@System@[OpenForm LOG,,,telNo='CLID'].

Here LOG is the form name & telNo is the field in this form containing the phone digits.

'CLID' should be entered instead of the phone digits in the DD	E command.

Click the Format button and enter the different phone number formats (based on the number of phone digits) in the Phone Number Formats dialog box.

Format Based on No. o	f Digits 🛛 🛞
Enter the different phone n selected DDE application.	umber formats as expected by your
3 digits	9 digits xxxxxxx
4 digits XXXX	10 digits(a) ××××××××
5 digits ××××	11 digits(b)
6 digits xxxxx	12 digits(c) ××××××××××
7 digits xxxxxxx	13 digits(d) xxxxxxxxxxxx
8 digits xxxxxxx	14 digits(e) xxxxxxxxxxxxxx
OK Cance	el Help

The dialog box shown above displays the default formats for the various sizes of phone numbers.

The formats you enter should match the formats in your selected DDE application (server). This is necessary as different PIMs store the phone numbers in different formats depending upon the number of digits in the phone number.

OfficeServ Call needs to know in what format the phone digits are stored in the selected PIM depending upon the number of digits. OfficeServ Call formats the number according to the format entered above, and sends it to the PIM for a search.

Click OK on the Select the DDE Server dialog box. If the following error message box appears, check if your selected DDE application is running.



The error signifies that DDE is not initialized with your selected DDE application (server).

OfficeServ Call as DDE Server

OfficeServ Call as DDE server supports only the 'SmartControl' Services Name and 'Telephony' Topic Name. Any client PIM can place a call using OfficeServ Call. The client application needs to send the command as 'MakeCall XYZ' after starting the conversation using 'SmartControl' as the Services Name and 'Telephony' as the Topic Name.

E.g.: A user of SuperOffice PIM can place a call using OfficeServ Call. The following command needs to be entered in the 'Prefix' field of the Dial dialog box in SuperOffice:

Supported Commands:

<u>MakeCall</u> DDE ; SmartControl ; Telephony ; MakeCall XYZ where XYZ is the number that is to be dialed.

<u>DropCall</u> DDE ; SmartControl ; Telephony ; DropCall

ABBREVIATION

Α ACT Active B BLF **Busy Lamp Field** С CID **Caller Identification** CLID Calling Name Identification D DB Database DCS Digital Cellular system DDE Dynamic Data Exchange DND Do Not Disturb DNIS **Dialed Number Identification Services** DTMF **Dual Tone Multiple Frequency** I IAP Integrated Access Platform ID Identifier IP Internet Protocol L LCD Liquid Crystal Display Μ MDB Multi-media Database MMC Man Machine Communication Ο Off Hook Voice Announce OHVA OS **Operating System** Ρ

PCX Private Communication eXchange

S

SN	Service Name
•	

Т

TAPI	Telephony Application Program Interface
TEL	Telephone
TELNO	Telephone Number
TSP	Telephony Service Provider



Software License Agreement & Limited Warranty For OfficeServ CTI Applications for iDCS or OfficeServ 7000 Keyphone Series

IMPORTANT, READ CAREFULLY

This Samsung End-User License Agreement (EULA) is a legal binding agreement between you (either an individual or an entity) and Samsung for Samsung software product identified above, which includes computer software and may include printed material, and "online" or electronic documentation ("SOFTWARE"). By installing, using the SOFTWARE, you indicate your acceptance of this Samsung License Agreement. If you do not agree to the terms of this License Agreement, please do not install or use the enclosed SOFTWARE.

SOFTWARE LICENSE

The SOFTWARE is protected by copyright laws and international copyright treaties, as well as other intellectual property laws and treaties.

- 1. GRANT OF LICENSE. This License Agreement grants you following rights:
 - a. SOFTWARE: Samsung grants to you a personal, non-exclusive license to make and use one (1) copy of the SOFTWARE accompanying this Agreement on any single computer, provided the SOFTWARE is in use on only one computer at any time. If you have multiple Licenses for the SOFTWARE, then at any time you may have as many copies of the SOFTWARE in use as you have Licenses.
 - b. Electronic Documents: Solely with respect to electronic documents included with the SOFTWARE, you may make an unlimited number of the copies, provided that such copies shall be used only for internal purpose and you shall not publish or distribute such to any third party, without Samsung Electronics Co., LTD. written and expressed consent.
 - c. Limitation on Reverse Engineering, Decompilation, Disassembly: You shall not reverse engineer, decompile or disassemble the SOFTWARE, except to the extent that this restriction is expressly prohibited applicable law.
 - d. Separation of Components: The SOFTWARE is licensed as a single product. Its component parts may not be separated for use on more than one computer.
 - e. Rental: You may not rent, lease and/or lend the licensed SOFTWARE.
 - f. Support Services: Samsung may provide you with support services related to the SOFTWARE, according to Samsung policies and programs and in for the country in which the SOFTWARE was purchased. With respect to technical information you provide to Samsung as part of the support services, Samsung may use such information for its business purpose, including for product support and development. Samsung will not utilize such technical information in a form that personally identifies you.
 - g. SOFTWARE Transfer: You may permanently transfer all of your rights according to this agreement, provided you retain no copies, you transfer all of the SOFTWARE, and the recipient agrees to the terms of this agreement by notifying in writing to authorized Samsung VAR, outfit and/or dealer in which the SOFTWARE was purchased. And including all prior versions of SOFTWARE, if the SOFTWARE is an upgrade.
 - h. Termination: Without prejudice to any other rights, Samsung may terminate this agreement if you fail to comply with the terms and condition of this agreement. In such event, you must destroy all copies of the SOFTWARE and all of its component parts.

2. SOFTWARE ACTIVATION

Software Activation; Samsung will provide a software activation code that will allow use of the purchased OfficeServ CTI products. The activation code will be associated with the MAC address of the LAN interface of the Samsung telephone system. In the event of hardware failure associated with the LAN interface Samsung will issue a replacement software activation code when requested by a Samsung authorized dealer. In the event that a replacement software activation code is issued the defective hardware associated with the original software activation code must be returned to Samsung. If the hardware associated to the software activation code is not returned to Samsung by the dealer the dealer will be billed for the original purchase price of the OfficeServ CTI application.

3. UPGRADES & COPYRIGHT

- a. Upgrade: If the SOFTWARE is an upgrade of a component of a package of software programs that you licensed as a single product, the SOFTWARE may be used and transferred only as an part of that single product package and may not be separated for use on more than one computer.
- b. Copyright: The SOFTWARE is owned by Samsung or its suppliers and protected by copyright laws and international treaty provisions. Therefore, you must treat the SOFWARE like any other copyrighted material except that you may install the SOFTWARE on a single computer provided you keep the original solely for backup or archival purpose. You may not copy the printed materials accompanying the SOFTWARE.

LIMITED WARRANTY

Samsung warrants that (a) the SOFTWARE will perform substantially in accordance with the accompanying written materials for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of receipt, and (b) any Samsung supplied hardware accompanying the SOFTWARE will be free from defects in materials and workmanship under normal use and service for a period of one(1) year from the date of receipt. During the warranty periods specified above, Samsung will replace or repair any software or hardware found to be defective. Warranty claims should be made through the Samsung dealer from whom the products were purchased, and must be made within the applicable warranty period.

NO OTHER WARRANTIES

TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY THE APPLICABLE LAW, SAMSUNG DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WITH RESPECT TO THE SOFTWARE, THE ACCOMPANYING PRODUCT MANUAL(S) AND WRITTEN MATERIALS, AND ANY ACCOMPANYING HARDWARE.

NO LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES

TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, IN NO EVENT SHALL SAMSUNG OR ITS SUPPLIERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF BUSINESS PROFITS, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, LOSS OF BUSINESS INFORMATION, OR ANY OTHER PECUNIARY LOSS) ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE THE SOFTWARE PRODUCT, EVEN IF SAMSUNG HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. Samsung Telecommunications America, L.P.